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4,686 692 — 5,378
16,654 13,216 237 30,107
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(526) (1,530) 6,029 3,973
(8,188) 5,568 11,124 8,504
(4,293) (3.172) (2,626) (10,091)
30,096 — — 30,096

(701) (3,692) (10,116) (14,509)
40,896 40,173 19,931 101,000
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22,707 1,755 24,462
(2,255) (367) (2,622)
(96) 2,718 2,622
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(1,434) (208) (1,642)
14,734 — 14,734
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(141,933) 316,427 (2,885) 171,609
(36,296) (14,856) 61,890 10,738
(1,668,480) (46,867) (5,562)  (1,720,909)
5,045,037 — — 5,045,037
(1,911,532) (71,213) (7,289)  (1,990,034)
(52,802) (29,792) (26,806) (109, 400)
14,639,799 714,111 59,922 15,413,832
ECL ECL
( ) ( )
( ) ( ) )
1,462,220 2,993 1,465,213
(10,510) (955) (11,465)
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942,318 — 942,318
(332,224) (666) (332,890)
(10,868) (1,133) (12,001)
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5,115,776 5,084,879
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77/288



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

11

12

14

Ogoooood
2018 31 2019 31

1,134,721 896,695
1,173,093 2,017,940
1,358,699 1,943,684
6,307,222 6,758,909
1,440,265 1,488,938
11,414,000 13,106,166
6,585,417 5,802,656
4,828,583 7,303,510
11,414,000 13,106,166

2000

2000
SPE
SPE
SPE
SPE

78/288




EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

ooooOoog
2018 31 2019 31
3,891,300 4,102,374
3,078,619 3,250,254
812,681 852,120
4,244,495 4,469,774
3,101,812 3,278,411
1,142,683 1,191,363
2018 31 2019 31
19,410,742 31,324,742
850,000 1,331,800
4,000 4,000
4,080,000 4,080,000
1,120,000 1,120,000
13,506,153 15,004,163
3,078,619 3,250,254
812,682 852,120
5,904,590 16,320,580
850,000 1,331,800
4,000 4,000
1,001,381 829,746
307,318 267,880
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5.7 )
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2003
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47,817 22,032
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— 265,483 — 265,483
— (167) — (167)
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56,808 (19,694) 37,114 — — 37,114
17,162,333 (19,694) 17,142,639  (103,693) (1,200) 17,037,746
5,115,776 — 5,115,776 — — 5,115,776
135,265 — 135,265  (103,693) (6,000) 25,572
490,365 (19,694) 470,671 — — 470,671
5,741,406 (19,694) 5,721,712 (103,693) (6,000) 5,612,019
1,416,603 — 1,416,603 — — 1,416,603
17,076,012 — 17,076,012 — — 17,076,012
277,777 — 277,777 (129,073)  (25,000) 123,704
78,593 (21,861) 56,732 — — 56,732
18,848,985 (21,861) 18,827,124  (129,073)  (25,000) 18,673,051
5,084,879 — 5,084,879 — — 5,084,879
143,422 — 143,422 (129,073)  (16,900) (2,551)
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5,115,776 — — 5,115,776

3,933,686 — — 3,933,686

897,525 6,582,789 — 7,480,314
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4,235,900 (4,235,900) — —
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5,084,879 — — 5,084,879
4,329,317 — — 4,329,317
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( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
4,070,988 214,384 — 4,285,372
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(@
2,074 1,666

20 50
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(b)
26
2018 31
( ) ( )
8,407 7,925 482
24,003 21,861 2,142
6,969 1,140 5,829
39,379 30,926 8,453
2019 31
( ) ( )
10,417 8,358 2,059
28,219 23,699 4,520
7,479 1,012 6,467
46,115 33,069 13,046
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31 )
868 2,050 5,913 8,831
3 1,271 6,481 7,755
— — (4,901) (4,902)
(389) 1,179) (1,664) (3,232)
482 2,142 5,829 8,453
31 )
482 2,142 5,829 8,453
2,009 4,216 6,860 13,085
— — (4,441) (4,441)
(432) (1,838) (1,781) (4,051)
2,059 4,520 6,467 13,046
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IT
10
154,087 128,831 25,256
171,357 141,024 30,333
2018 2019
31 31
33,575 25,256
7,429 17,270
(12,363) (12,193)
(3,385) —
25,256 30,333
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2018 31 2019 31
50,401 49,164
10,910 6,125
30,456 32,301
4,471 5,819
96,238 93,409
74,066 91,838
5,924 7,193
79,990 99,031
16,248 (5,622)
86,833 96,238
(6,576) (1,237)
11,234 (4,785)
4,045 1,845
702 1,348
96,238 93,409
68,859 79,990
9,825 17,772
1,306 1,269
79,990 99,031
16,248 (5,622)
(12,798) (21,439)
29,046 15,817
16,248 (5,622)
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GST GST GST
100 2019 31 GST GST 50.4
2018 59.4
2003

©) 2003
©
(d)
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2018 31 2019 31
13,831 47,042
4,328 3,223
5,166 22,735
4,337 21,084
13,831 47,042
2018 31 2019 31
13,407 710
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25
©)
¢ )
2018 31 2019 31
2,575,000 2,402,000
¢ )
2008
100
2018 31 2019 31
R 20 0
2010 2012 2018 31 ) 2,000 2,000 — —
QY
1.025
¢ )
2019 2018 31
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2018 31 2019 31
24,466 20,254
(773) —
(12,917) (15,365)
(117) (101)
(187) (229)
(448) (351)
1,102 847
810 84
190 107
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2018 31 2019 31

* (38,586) (26,916)

* 3,244 4,886

* 20 —
35,454 35,454

* 145,637 139,405

* 6,859 8,022
489 —

2019 31 2018 31
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2019 31
2018 31 31
1,282,624 1,416,603
15,509,768 17,076,012
1,253,579 1,414,487
360,648 343,139
4,284 4,284
25,256 30,333
8,453 13,046
16,248 —
849,796 908,852
19,310,656 21,206,756
2,037,157 1,834,625
11,414,000 13,106,166
3,891,300 4,102,375
135,265 143,422
— 5,622
470,671 443,261
— 80,830
17,948,394 19,716,301
1,362,262 1,490,455
120,000 120,000
1,242,262 1,370,455
1,362,262 1,490,455
2019 31 8,947 8,998 2018

8,147 9,766
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2019 31
2018 31 2019 31
719,484 799,433
343,766 358,461
35,517 39,491
1,098,767 1,197,385
(617,547) (612,687)
(280,523) (290,696)
(898,070) (903,383)
200,697 294,002
206,171 195,484
406,868 489,486
(23,658) (45,006)
10,015 (16,462)
(111,018) (133,803)
(18,980) (16,244)
IT (17,349) (19,460)
(11,254) (11,429)
(7,227) (9,347)
(26,190) (24,822)
201,206 212,913
(61,366) (59,567)
139,840 153,346
@
®
29
©
30
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2018 31 2019 31
( )
527,276 579,732
487,083 264,635
298,853 339,961
1,313,212 1,184,328
44,833 33,828
1,358,044 1,218,156
( )
(
)
105,764 134,218
36

Pty

ASIC 2016/785

2019 31
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a)

AASB AASB 15
2018
AASB 15 2018
37(b) AASB
2018
AASB AASB 15
2018 31 2018
1,282,624 — 1,282,624
15,509,768 30,582 15,540,350
1,253,579 (6,462) 1,247,117
313,133 — 313,133
67,331 — 67,331
25,256 — 25,256
8,453 — 8,453
16,248 (7,236) 9,012
37,114 — 37,114
18,513,506 16,884 18,530,390
5,115,776 — 5,115,776
11,414,000 — 11,414,000
135,265 — 135,265
470,671 (77,185) 393,486
— 77,185 77,185
17,135,712 — 17,135,712
1,377,794 16,884 1,394,678
120,000 — 120,000
5,274 — 5,274
1,252,520 16,884 1,269,404
1,377,794 16,884 1,394,678
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b) AASB
AASB AASB 139
2018 AASB
)
2018 AASB
AASB
)
AASB
37(a)
AASB
AASB

AASB
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c)

OooooOodd
2018
12 ECL ECL
13,612,899 576,046 14,188,945
43,828 43,172 87,000
— 2,742,403 2,742,403
— 24,462 24,462
2018 31 2018
2018 31 121,713 13,869 135,582
(34,713) 10,593 (24,120)
2°§8 87,000 24,462 111,462
AASB 15
2018 AASB 15 AASB 15
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(a) 73 2001
(¢ ) 2001 Corporations Regulations 2001
( ) 2019 31
(b)
© 36 36
@
J.R.

2019
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435181

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Compoidated Comvsnlaated
Note 2013 201E
§'000 4000
AT ERT i Pyt 3a 799,433 719,884
Eental indoma om mgtor wahl cles wnder operating lease 352461 343,765
Fee income -] A A%1 35,582
Financing ang smdlar révesus 1187345 1,098,831
‘e et supease and s'milar chatges In [ELR L H 456 45|
Oepreciation espenie on motor vehicles undes apeating lsase B |2 0650 {280,523}
Finmncing expeaie and wmilsr chanped 1770097 [736,929)
Yet finandng revenus 426, TER Bl a0z
ither freeriue a 45353 45,250
Ml operating impame AT S 407,153
Credit Im@pirment losim L |45.006| 23,658}
Mon-ored-t i mpalrment fosses|ipaing o [T 10,04%
Emploryee Beeal 1% e pesys {133,503 (11008}
Depracislion, smortsaon and wrile-clf 5 [LLF s ] |18.9&0|
IT arad comwhunicalion enpense [E%460) 7. 348)
Sales and markelng eaperse (a1 Axaf 45,25k
OECupanty Fipenie [337) [r2a7)
(Fther mipenie [24. ET3) 26590}
Share of net prafits of susocisbes stoounied loe using e aguity mehud 14 BALD T
Prafit hetore income tax 03526 3415
| P BdE EADIETHAE & [S2.567) |6 e 30}
Profit stiributable ta ol Tayota Fin Bupdraily Lieited 143,950 1480509
ther eamprehenshor incame
e at moy be meclassiffed o proff or koss
Exchampe difleresces om tramslation of forelgn operat ons 15 1,555 & R
Totsl campeek some it le bo ol
Toyots Fingnce Auctrails Limited A45 4ma 49800

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read In canjunction with the sccompanying
notes,
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

ABN 48 002 435 181

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 MARCH 2019
Consolidated Consolidated
019 1018
Mote $'000 4000
L
Cash and cash equivalents n 1416603 1,483 644
Loans and receivables ga 17,076,012 15,509,768
Motor wohitles under oparating lease b 1414487 1,253,579
Cesivative financial instruments 17 277,197 313,133
Investrments accounted for using the egulty method 5 17,325 E7.331
Intangible assers 17 30,333 15,156
Praperty, plant and equipment 26 13,046 B453
Deforned tax atastt 18 * 16,248
Other assets 23 56,731 37,114
Total Assets 20,362,315 18,513,506
Lishilities
Dwe 1o banks and ather financial institutions 10 5,084,875 5,115,776
Bands and commerdial paper 11 13,106,166 11,414,000
Derivative financal nstruments 17 143,422 135,265
Dederred tay llabilities FL 5612 =
‘Other Hobilrties Tda 443 261 AT0671
Comntract Habilities 24b 80830 -
Taotal Liahilkties 18.B64.180 17,135, 71
Met Adsels 1,498,135 1,377,784
Equity
Contributed equity 14 120,000 120,000
Reserves 15 6,B0% 5174
Retained earnings 16 1,371,326 1,252,530
Total Eqguity 1,498,135 1,377,798

Thi abave consolidated statement of financlal position should be read in canjunction with the acoompanying notes,
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

ittributable to ownert of Toyota Fimance Auttralias Limited

Contributed Retained
equity fAeserves earnings Taotal equity
Note 5'000 S'o00 S'o0n <'non

Balance at 1 Aprll 2012 120,000 5174 1,152.570 LATT 84
Change in accounting policy [Note 371 . . 16,864 16,684
Reststed total equity si 1 Apeil 2018 130,000 5374 1 268 404 1384678
Profit far the year - 143950 143,958
Oriher comprehensive incame - 1,535 - 153%
Total comprehensive income lor the year . 1,518 143 555 145,454
Traniackions with owners in ther capac by as
LI S

Dividend paid 16 E - [42037] 42,037}
Balarce at 31 March 2010 110,000 [N 1,371 328 1,498,135
Balance at 1 April 2007 120,060 3.425 1,111,352 1,234,777
Prafin far the year - - 148058 148,053
Dahir comprahianiive infome v 1..!:11_9_ ' 1848
Tatsl eampirehensive incame for the pear . 1 245 148 059 149 S8
TramsacBcmd wilh owners in theif capacity as
oW

Dividend pald 16 . E 16.891) (6,591)
Balante st 31 March 2018 130,008 5 374 1,253 530 1,377,734

The abowe consalidated statemert of changes in equity should be read In conjunction with the accornpanying notes,
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

ABN 48 002 4315 181

COMSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Cash flows from operoting octivities
Met cash outflow from lending and ather
operating activithes
Interest received
Rental income feceied
Interest paid
Income Laxes paid
Net cash outflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing octivities
Payments for intangible assets
Payments for property, plant and egquipenent
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and egquipment
Dividends received from associate

HNet cash outflow from investing activities

Cash flows from financing ectivities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayments of barrowings
Dividends paid to parent

Met cash inflow frem financing activities

Med increase in cash and cash equivabents
Cash and eash squivalents at beginning of perind
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Conselidated Consolidated
Note 2019 1018
5000 5'000

[1,870.623) |2,144,99E)

977,251 B95.573

358 461 143,766

1447,702) [324,350)

62,531) {6,370

12 11,045,144) [1,306,329)
[17.270] [7.429)
{13,085) |8,120)

4,391 4,901

- 6,891
{25 964) [3.757)

16,724 397 14,365,734
[15,477.273) (13,03E,705)
16 42,037 {6,8491)
1,205,087 1,324,138

133,973 14,062

1,282,624 1,368,572

b} 1,416,603 1,281,624

Thi abave consolidated statement of cash fiows showd be read In conjunction with the sccompanying notes,
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Basis of preparation

This section descrises the compary's significant accounting policles that relate to the finandial statements and
notes of the accounts, I an accounting pollcy refates 1o @ particular rote, the applicable poliey i contained
within thie relevant note. This section alwe shows new accounting standards, amendmerts and interpretations
and whether they are effective in the current fiscal year or |ater years.

1. Corporate information

These financial statements cover the contalidated financial statements of the consalidated entity comprising
Tayota Finance Australia Limited, a5 parent entity, and the entities it controlled at the end of, ar during the
fimaneial year.

Tayata Finance Australia Limited {the company’} is a company limited by shares, incorporsted and domiciled in
Australia. its registered office and principal place of butines i

Toyota Finance Australia Limited
Leved 9, 207 Pacific Highway
5T LEONARDS, NSW, 2065

Adescription of the nature of the consalidated entity's principal activities is inchudied in the directars’ report on
page 2, which ls not part of the financial staternents.

The financial statements were authorised for [ssue by the directors on 5 June 2019, The company has the poser
to amend and relssue the financial statements,

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal sccounting policies adapted in the preparation of the financial statements are set aut below
These policies have been consistently opplied to ofl the years presented, unless otherwise stated, Where
necessary, comparative information has been restated (o confarm to changes in presentation in the current
year. The financial statements are for the consolidated entity conststing af Teyata Finance Australia Limited
and its eantiolled entities.

a) Basis of preparation

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared In accordance with Australlan Accounting
Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board and the Corporations Act
AWM. Tayota Finance Auwstralia Limited is a for-peofit entity for the purpose of preparing the financial statements

Compliznoe with IFRS

The eongalidated flinancial statements of Toyola Finance Australia Limited and ifs controlled entities also
comply with International Financial Reporting Standasds (IFAS) &s issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (1A58).

Historical cost convention
These financial staternents have been prepared under the historical cost convention, 25 modified by the
revaluation of financlal assets and liabeities at fair value through profit of loss (derivatives],

10
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Basis of preparation (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continuad)
{b} Principles of consalidation

{i] Subsidaries

The consolidated financial statements incerparate the assets and labdities of alf subsidiaries af Toyola Finance
Australia Limited ("company” or “parent entity”) as at 31 March 2019 and the resules of 3l subsidiasies for the
year then endod. Toyota Finance Australia Limited and its controlled entities together are referned to in the
fimancial stabements as the consobidated entity.

Subsidiaries are all entities {including structured entities) over which the company has control. The company
cartrals &m entity when the company is exposed ta, or has iights to, varable retwns frem its invalvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power o direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidizries are fully consolidated fram the date on which contral is transferred 1o the consolidated entity. Thiy
are ceconsolidated from the date that the control ceases.

The acquisition method af accounting is used to sccount Tor busness combinations by the company.

Intercomgany tramactions, balances snd unrealised gains on transsctions between consolkdated entities are
iminated. Unreakised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries hove been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the parent entity.

fii) Associctes

Associatos arg all entities over which the company entity has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying & sharehalding of between 0% and 50% of the voting rights. Inveszments In associates are
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using The equity method of accounting, after initially
being recognised sl cost.

The compary's share al s associates’ past-acquisition profits or losses i recognited in prafil or loss, and its
share of post-acquisition mowements in reserves i4 recognised in ather camprehensive Income, The cumulative
PoAl-aCquilition movernents are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. Dividends receivable
from associates are recognised in the consolidated financlal stztements as a reduction against the carying
armount of the investment.

Wheen the company’s share of losses in an associate eguals or enceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured long-tesm recelvables, the consolidated entity doed not recognise further beases, unless ithas
Incurned obligatns or made payments on behalf of 1 associste.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the company and its msocintes are diminated to the extent of the
consolidated entity's intessst in associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides

evidence of g impabmment of the asset transferred, Accounting policles of sssociates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the pabces adopied by the consolidated antity.

11
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Basis of preparation (continued)

2. Ssummary of significant accounting policies (continued]

[€) Fareign currency tramslation

i} Funcrianal ond présentanion CLrrenty

Items included in the financial staternents of each of the consolidated entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic enviranment in which the entity operates {the functional currency’). The consodidated
Tinancial statements are presented in Australlan dollars, which & the company's functional and presentation

Cufrency.

On consolidation, the exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in the foreign
entity from functional to presentation currency is recognised in other comprehensive income,

fii] Tronsmctions ond bolemces

Foreign currency transactions are translated inlo the lunctionel currency using the exchange rates prevailing ot
the dotes of the transactions. Forelgn exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the trandlation 8 year end exchange rates of monetary sasets ond fabilities denaminated
in foreign currencles are recognised in profit or loss.

Forelgn exchange gains and losses that relates to bosrrowings are presented in the income statement, within
financing expense and similar charges, All other foreign exchange gaing and losses are prosented in the income
statement on & net basis within other income or other expenses,

(d) Rounding of amounts

The comparny is af a kind referred to in ASK Legislative Instrument 2016191 relating to the -:‘uurldil'll_d‘H- af
armounis in the financial statements. Amounts in the financial statements have been rounded off in socordance
with the Inttrument fo the nearest thouwsand doflars, or in certain cases, the nearest dollar.

(e} New or revised accounting standards and Interpretation

Newi and revised standards came into effect during the current reporting perind and the company has had to
change its accounting palicies and make retrospective adjustments where applicable,

®  The AASE 9 Financual Initrwments, and
®  The AASE 15 Revenue fromm Confrachs with Cuttomers,

The impact of the adoption of these standards is disclosed in Note 37,

12
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Basis of preparation [continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting palides [continued]
{f} Mew or revised accounting standards and interpretation not yet adopted

AALE 16 Leases - AASE 16 will primarlly affect the accounting by lessees and will result In the recognition af
almast all leases on the balance sheet, The standard removes the current distinction between operating and
finance leases and requires recognition of an assot [the right to usa the leased item] and a finansial lisbility to
pay rentals for almost all lease contracts. The atcounting by lestors, however, will not signifieantly change,

The new standard i required for mandatory application for the financial period commencing 1 April 2019,

The company has assessed the impact of the new standard . The company will recognize new assets and lishifties
for the operating leased of its various office premises. The anture of the expenses related to these leases will
change a5 AASH 16 replaces the stralght-lne operating lease expense with a depreciation charge fof fight-of-ule
assets and interest expense on kease labilities,

As at 31 March 2009, the company’s future minimum lease payments under nan-cancellabhe operating leases
amaunted 1o 35,315,000 on a discounted basis, which the company estimates it will recognise a5 additional
lease Fabllithes,

The company plans (o apply AASE 16 inftlally on 1 April 2018, using & modified retrospective approach. Under
thiy apgeroach, the right-af-use piset is recognised at the date of initial application (1 April 2015) at an amount

equal to the l=ase llabdity, using the entity’s current incremental rate of borrowing with noa restatement af
comparative information.

13
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Results for the year

This section pravides further infarmation and accounting palicies about individual line items in the
consolidated staternent of comprehensive income, including:

interest revenue and expense

fee income on originated assets

other revenue

depreciation, amortisation and write-off

intormE TAx expEndes

segment results

3. Financing revenue and expense and similar charges

Consolidated Coniolidated

2019 2018
[3] Interest revenue and expenie s'o0a $'o00
Finmneing and timilar ravanue
Intprest revenue 877401 BG5 603
Fer intome fecoagnited using the effective interest rate method BET10 E1.548
Fee svpense recognised using the effective interet rate method (244 678} (237,357}
Total finsnring and wimilar revemie Ta5.45% Ti9.484
Imterest expense and simitar charges
Interesl pxpimnis AL ATR 374 5TE
Mt loss on translatiaon of ioeegn ourrency detst 351,325 116,783
Fair value gain on derivative financial instrumants at fair value through
praft or lods 323,208y |53,143)
Tramsactkan oosts 11486 18,189
Total interest expene and 1imBar charges 400,401 456,408
[b) Few Imcome sarned on originated assets
Ademanistration and mansgement fee LEREE] 10,184
Other fees 5,378 5418
Total fee iIncome 35,491 35,582

14
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Results for the year (continued)
3. Financing revenue and expense and similar charges (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue s measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amoaunts discbosed as revenrus
are not of direct sales costs and taxes.

The consalidated entity recognives revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benedfits will flow to the entity and spedific criteria have been met, Revenue is recognised
for the major business activities as follows:

(i} Term loans and term purchase

Interest ncorme arising from term lpans and term purchase are recognised over the period of the contract using
the effective interest rate method, ncome derived Iram term loans and term purchases is included in "interest
TEwEnuE”,

[ii} Leased mssets where the consoldated entity is the lessor

fa) Finonce leases

Interest income derved from firance leates is recognised over the petiad af the contract using the effective
interest rate method. Income derkbved (rom finance leases is included In “interest revenue®

b} Operating leases

Lease rentaly receivable an operating leases are recognised on a systematic basis over the effective lease term.
Income derived from operating leases is included in “rental income on motar vehicle under operating lease™,
Operating leases hod a0 aversge term af 43 months In the current period (21018: 43 months)

(i) Fee income and expense

Fee incoma and expenie are an integral part 1o the effective interest rate of the financlal assets or Habilities and
ane ineluded in the measuraement of the effective interest rate (Note 3a),

Revenue from administration ang manapgement fees are recognised over time as the sefvides are provided,
Other fees ate recognised at the point in time when the transaction takes place [Note 3b).

4, Othor revenue

Consolidated Consolidated

2015 2018

§'000 5'000
Het gain on disposal of leased and fixed a3sets 15,245 12,494
Het insurance distri butl on revenue 1g,E82 13,333
het mairtenance revenue 11,664 12,630
Qiher income 1,561 93
45,353 45,250

Net insurance distribution revenue and not maintenance revenue are recagnised o4 the related services are
perdformed. Net maintenance revenue represents net income received for faeilitating the provision of
maintenance services on fleet contracts. The revenwe s recognised as those services are provided, The company
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Results for the year (continued)

4, Other revenue (continued)
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acts a5 an agent and as such presents the revenue recelved net of associated costs in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. Revenue received in advance of the services being provided is presented as a contract
liability until such point as the services have been provided. Further information in relation te contract Babilities

s presented in Note 24(b).

5, Depreciation, amortisation and write-off

Profit before income tax incdudes the following specilic expenses:

Deprecialian on gropey, ploal ond squipment
Leasehold imgrovements.
Plant and egui pment
Motor weliches

Total deprediatian

Amartisation and white-off
Compater software amortisation
Computer software wite-cff

Total amortisation and wrine-off

Total deprediation, smortisation and write-off

Consalidated Consolidsted
s 2018
$'o00 $'000

43z 389
1,838 1173
1,781 1664
4,051 3232

12,193 12363

. 3385
12,193 15 748
16,244 18,380

Mssers that are subject 1o depreciation, aman isation and wiite-oll are tested far impairment whenever events
@ changes in circumatances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss Is
recognised far the amaunt by which the aswet’s carrying amount exceeds its recowerable amount. The
recoverable amount Is the higher of an asset’s falr value less costs to resell and value in use. For the purposes of
asseising impairment, assets are grouped a1 the lowest levels for which there ore separately identifiable cash
inflaws which are largely Independent al the cash inflows from other asset groups (cosh genernting units),

Refer ta Note 26 Property, plant and equipment & Note 27 Intangible assets for further informatian an

depreciation and amortisation,

6, Income tax expense

The incame Las expense of revenue for the period is the tax payable or recehvable on the current periods taxable
Income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes In delerred tax asspts
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for dedectible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available ta utilise those temporary differences and logses.

Delerned tan liabilities and asiets ane nol recognised for temporary differences betwesn the carying amount
and tax bases of investments in controlied entities where the parent entity is able 1o control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foresecable

future.
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Results for the year (continued)

. Income tax expense (continued]
Consolidated Consofidated

019 2018
5'000 $'000

Curront tax 44,501 55,030
Delerred tax 14,634 1,726
Undes prowiskan in prior year 432 610
income tax expense attributable to continuing operations 59,567 61,366
Deferred incame tax expense incleded ' income tan expense
comprises:
(Increase)f Decrease in deferred tax assets {2.B28) 9404
Decreass in deferred tax labilities {19,082) 111,130)
Decrease in deferred tax ssets credited to equity 1,236 -

{14,634 {1,726}
Numerlcal reconcillation of income La expense to prima
facie tax payabla:
Profit from continuing operations before income tax expense 203,526 209,425
Prima facie tax payable @ 30% B1,058 62,828
Tax eftect of amounts which sre not deductible (tasable) in
calculating taxablo incorme:
Share of net profit of associate {2.538) {2,380)
Sundiry items 615 308

59,135 60,758

Under provision in prigr years 432 10
Income tax enpense attributable to continuing operations 58,567 61,366

Ceferred tax assets and abilitles are offset when there is a legally enforoeable right 1o offset current Lax assets
and Habllitles and when the deferred tan bilances relate o the same Lacation authosity. Current tax assets and
llabilities are olfset where the entity has a legally enforceable ight to offset and intends either to settle onanet
basis, or 1o realise the asset and setthe the liability simult aneoushy,

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
In other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax & also recognised in other
comprehensive intame or directly in equity, respectively,

Tax consolidation legislation

The company and its whally-owned Australian controlled entities have implemented the tax consolidation
legistation fram 1 April 2003 in association with other Australion incorporated entities with commaon ownership.

Or sdoption of the inceme tax consolidation legislation, the entities in the income tax consolidmed group
entered into an income tax tharing agreement which, in the apinion of the directors, limits the joint and several

liahadity for income tax af the consolldated entity in the case of a default by the head entity, Toyota Motor
Corporation Australia Limited.
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Results for the year (continued)
6. Income tax expense (continued)
Tax consolidation legislation [continued)

As & comsequence, the company is no longer subject 1o income tox and does nol Fecognise any current tax
balances in its own financial staterments unless the head entity (Toyota Motor Corporation Australia Limited) Is
im default of its obligations, or a default s probable, under the tax consolidation legislation, or the tax amounts
redate to tanable income Incurred prior to the Implementation of the tax consolidation regime,

The consolidated entity has also entered into an income tax funding agreement under which the consalidated
entity fully compensates the head entity for any current income tax payable assumed and s compensated by
the head entity for any current Income tax receivable. The funding amounts are determined by reference taothe
amounis recognised in the congolidated entity's financial statements.

The amaunts receivable/payable under the income tax funding agreement &5 due upon receipt of the funding
advice frorm the head entity, which is Baued as so00n as practicable after the end of each financial year. The head
entity may also require paymoent of interim funding amounts to assist with its obligations to pay incame tax
instalments.

Deferred tax balances are recogrised in the consolidated financial staterments In accordance with UIG 1052 Tax
Consolidetion Accounting. Amounts receivable ar payable under 3 tax funding agreement with the head entity

are recognised in accordance with the terms and conditions of the agreement as tax-related amounts recelvable
and payable.
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Results for the year (continued)
7. Segment results

Management has determined the operating segments based on reports reviewed by the baard of directors that
are wsed to make strategic decisions. it categorises the operations of the business Into two main business
streams — Retail and Fleet. Retadl segment i3 comprised of lpans ond loases to personsl and earnmercial
customers including whotesale finance consisting of loans and balment facilities to motor vehicle dealerghips.
Fleet segment b eamprised of losns and leazes to small businesses and fleet customers consisting of resdivm to
lnrge commercial clients and governmans bodies, The company’s business segmenis operate in Australia

2019
Consalidated Retai Fleet Unallocated Tatal
5'000 5000 5'000 5°000
Het financing revenue |excluding foe Income) 245,611 57127 83,059 386,797
Fes incame
Fee income recognised over a period of time 24178 8,935 & 34,113
Fee income recognised at @ point in time 4.6BE 642 4 5378
DOther revenue
Other revenue recognised a1 a point in time 16,654 13,216 237 30107
Met gain on disposal of leased and fixed asssts . 14,966 280 15,246
Met operating income 282129 45,536 83576 471 641
Segment operating prafit 113,052 33,120 . 146,171
1018
Consolidated Retail Fleet Unallocated Total
$'000 $'000 5000 $'000
Mot operating incoms 272 800 EB 422 45,930 07,152
Segment operating profit 163,508 48,057 - 112,055
2019
Assets Retail Fleet Unallacated Tatal
$'000 5'000 5'000 $°000
Segment assets 15,304,832 3185666 1871817 10362315
1018
Rpail Fleet Unallocated Total
5'000 5000 5000 $'000
Segment assets 14,058,232 LH05116 1,750,158 18,513,506
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Results for the year [continued)
7. Segment results [continued)

The consolidated entities segment operating profit reconciles to consolidated profit attributable to owners as
presented in the financial staterment as Tollows:

CoroSdated Consolidated

09 1018

1000 £'000
Tatal regarting segmont operating profit 148,171 212,055
Lharea! nel prafit of equty accountec imvesEmend 8,458 21.934
Fair val e gaing|lnss) 1,360 |38,611]
Other unaliocated ret incoms 47,536 28,047
Profit before | ncome tax 03526 209435
Irscome tax expense §59,567) |61 356
Praft attributable to cwners of Toyota Fiaance Australia Limited 143,859 148,058

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting prosiced to the chief
operating declsion maker. The chie! operating decision maker who 15 responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments has been identified as the board of directors.

Effective 1 Apeil 2018, it has been decided 1o discontinue the allocation of the capital benelit to the business
segments, o capital managerment is 2 centralised function. The comparative fagures have been restated to

reflect this change in allocation methodology, Aetad segment profit has reduced from $1599,576,000 to
163,998,000 and Flect segment profit fram 554,981,000 to 548,057,000,
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Lending

This section focuses on the lending assets of the eonsalidated entity. Further information is provided on the
loant and recelvables, and impalrment relating to these financing assets.

8. Financing assets

Consolidated Consclidated
1019 Z01E
5000 £'000
() Loans and receivables
Bail ment stock 2E14,456 2418750
Term loars 14,328 808 13,282,984
Tem purchase 65E, 740 591 Tod
Finance leates T4 856 GRS 442
Gross loans and recetvables 18548860 16,978,280
Urearned ncome {1348 R57) [1.324 5301
Net lpans and receivables (et of unesrned income) 17,200,012 15,654,350
Provisinn far imgairment of laans and recelvables 124 000) [144.582]
Net loans and receivabiles 17,076,012 15,508,768
Maturity analyshs net of unesrned income)
Curent
Mot knans and receivables maturing within 12 manths 6.741 816 6,007 158
MgnCurent
Mot loars and recoivables maturing beyond 12 months Ejﬁ?,l!ﬁ 9,647,197
17,200,012 IEEEIEFE
Concentration of sxposures

The majority of the cansolidated entity's loans and recevabies are prowvi ded to finanoe the purchase of mator
vehicles or motor dealership assets,
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Lending (continued)

8. Financing assets (continued)

(b} Motor wehices unser sperating lease

g pot

Provisian for residual value impairment loss

Accumulated deprociation

Tats motor vehides under operating lease
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Future mimimum lease receipts under non-cancellable cperating leaes

CuTent

LEage receipts due within 12 months
Maon-Curvent

Lease recel pis beyond 12 months

Cansclidated Comialidated

9 018
$°000 $'0an

2,192,013 1,852 844

{39,240} j23.418)

{737 646) [F05847)

1,414 487 1,753 579

JERETD 23B.803

303 604 341 345

Maowements in cost, sccumulsted deprecation and reserves

Balance at the begirning of period, net of residual value

Additicns

Dipasals
Degreciation expense
Imupairmant {loss]fgaln

Balance 3t end af period, net af residual value

Racagnitian and de-recognitian

EE2ATE 580,148
1,253,575 1,175,133
T01.458 606,151
|233,383) (257,157)
|250,6946) {280.513)
{16 AG6T) 10045
1,414,487 1,253 578

Financing asseli are recognised on transaction settlement date = the date on which the conselidated entity
becomes party to an irrevacable financing arrangement. Firancing assets are initially recognised at fair value
plus trangaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assats are
derecognised when the rights 1o receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the consolidated entity has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Classificatian

Logns and receivables are classified ot amontised cost based on the following factors:

®  The'r contractual terms give rse to cash flows an specified dates, thet represent solely payments of
principal and interest (SPP) on the principal amount autstanding; and
= They are held within a business model whose olbjective s achieved by holding them to collect

contractual eash flows.

SPPI: For the purposes of this sssessmient, "principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asses on
Inltial recognition, ‘Interest’ is defined as corsideration for thie time value of maney and for the credit
risk associated with the pringipal amount outstanding during a particular perlod of time and for other
basie lending risks and costs e.g. liguidity risk and administrative casts), a5 well as profit margin,

22

140/288



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000000000000(E05954)
Oooooooa

Lending (continued)

B. Financing assets [continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement |continued)
Classificotion {continued)

Business model: Factars considered by the consalidated entity in determning the business model for a group of
astets intlude past experience on how the cash fiows for these asiets were collected, how the asset’s
performance |s ovaluated and reported to key manzgement persannel and how risks are assessed and managed.

The consclidated entity classifies its financng ateets into the lollowing categories:
{i] Bailment stock

The consalidated entity provides dealer floor plan finance arrangements 1o motor deakers under which vehicles
are owned by the consolidated entity but held at the dealers’ premises as ballment stock, There is no unearned
income an ballment stock.

Whiist the legal form af the iransactions is that the vehicles are owned by the consolidated entity, the substance
of the tramsactions i that of secured loans to the deslers. Accordingly, the balances are disclosed as part of
'lrans amd receivables’ in the statement of financial position.

fifl Term Loans

A term loan 15 a retail financing agreement in which the terms of the agreemont substantiafly transfer the rigk
snd rewards incldental to the ownership of an asset to the customer. Unearned finance incorme i the portion
of charges written into finance recelvable agreements which will be earned in the future.

i) Leased ossets where the consolidated enbity is the lessor

Term Purchose

A tom purchass s a lease agresment in which the terms of the agreement substantially transfer the risks and
rewards incidental to owmership of an asset to the customes. Unearmed finance income s the portion of charges
written into term purchase receivable agreements which will be sarmed In the future,

Finance Leaie

A fimance isase |s a lease agreement in which the terms ol the agreement substaniially transfer the risks and
rewards Incidental to ownership of an asset from the lessor to the lessee, Unearned finance income is the
portion of charpes written Into finance receivable agreemients which will be esned in the future,

Cperating Lease

Matar vehicles under operiting leases are included In financing assets. These are leases In which the terms of
the lease agreement do not substantially tranafer the ricks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset to
the lessee.

hator vehiclos under ogerating lease is inclusive of the carrying value of vehicles which ceased 1o be rented and
are hedd for sale amounting to 531,86 million a5 at 31 March 2019 [2008: 516.0 miflion),

Assets held under operating leases are depreciated on a systematic basis over the term of the lease to its
estimated residual value, Deprecialion pxpense is included within financing expense and similar charges.,
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Lending {continued)

8. Financing assets (continued)
Subzequent measurement

Loans and receivables are moasured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The effective interest
rmethod ca'culation includes the oontractusl terms of the laan, together with all fees and transaction costs,

Retail and wholesale finance receivables form part of the loans and receivables in the balance sheet.
Unearned income ts brought 1o account over the e of the contracts on an effective interest method,

podification

Tive cansolidated entity semetimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual cash flows of loans to
customers. When this happens, the consolidated enlity zssesses whether or not the new 1efims are substantially
different to the orginal terms by considering, among others, the following factors:

®  If the borrower s in financial difficulty, whether the modification merely reduces the contractual cash
flaws to amounts the borrower is expected to be able to pay.

= Significant change of the loan term andfer interest rates when the borrower is not in financlal difficulty.

= insertion of collateral, other security or credit enhancements that significantly affect the credit risk
essocisted with the foan.

Hf ihve terms are substantially different, the corsalidated entity derecognizes the origingl financial asset and
recognises a new assets at fair walue and recalculates & new effective interest rate for the asset If the Lerms
are nat substantially different, the renegotistion or modification does not result in de-recognition.
Coancentration of exposures

The majority of the consolidated entity's loans and receivables are provided ta finance the purchase or lease of
migtor wenickes or motar dealership assets,

Unearned income ls comprised of the following balances:

Consalidated Consolidated
018 018
5000 5'oon
Met unamartised deferred revenue and expenses {314.993| (302, 623)
Unearned | nterest incoere on finance leases 50,026 44 083
Unearned | nterest incorme on term loans 1,613,874 1583071
Totsl unearned income 1,348,857 1,324,530
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Lending (continued)

8. Financing assets (continued)
Securitisation

Lodns and receivables include o portion of the consolidated entity’s term lpane and term purchases under
spguritisation within special purpose entities, The terms of the transfer of these loans do not meet the criteria
for de-recognition under AASE 9 and are therefore recognised on the consolidated entity's statement of financial
position. AASE 10 defines contral when an investor s exposed or has rights to variable returns from s
inwolvement with the imvestes and has the ability to affect those returns theough its power ower the investee.
The parent entity bears control over the special purpose vehicles réquiring consalidation i the financial
statements.

As at the end of the reparting period, the carrying amoaunt af trans‘erred assets held by the special purpose
entitied under LECUrFNisELoA was 54,1024 milkon (2018 $3.891.3 millan).

9. Impairment of financing assets

Consolidated Consolidated
ams 018
5'000 $'000
&, Pravision for credit impalrment of loans and recehables
Opening balance 134582 156,492
Change in accountimg poli cy (Mate 37) {24,120} .
Restated balance as at 1 April 2018 120,462 156,492
Bad detits writhen afl {57.809) [57,348)
Increase In impairment loss provision 1,347 45438
Closing balanee 124,000 144,582
b. Credit impairment loss
Recovery of bad debits written off [16,341) [21,7R0)
Increase in i mpairment loss pravisian 51,347 45438
Total impairment loss A5, 006 23,658
¢ Non-credit impairment loss on motor wehicles wnder aperating beate
Opening balance 23418 13,433
Intreasefidecreasa) in impairment loss provision 1462 {IﬂE':I'}_L
Clasing balance 39,880 13418

The cantractual amount outstanding on financial assets that were written off during the year ended 31 March
2015 and that are still subject to enforcement activity is 553.78 million.
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Lending (continued)
9. Impairment of financing assets (continued)

In addition to the information below further information on credit risk can be found in Note 20,
The loss allowance recognised in the period ls impacted by a varlety of factors, as described below:

= Transfers between Stage 1 and Steges 2 or 3 due to linancial instruments experiencing significant
Increases (or decreases) of credit risk or becoming credit impaired in the period, and the consequent
“step up” [or "step down”) between 12 month and lfetime expected credit losses ("ECLT);

»  Additional allowances for new financial instrurments recogrised during the period, as well as refeases
for financial instruments dereoognised in Lthe period;

®  impact on the messurement of ECL due to changes in probability of defaul ["PD"), exposure at default
{"EAD") and lods glven defau't {("UGD") in the period, arising Trom regular refreshing of inputs to modets;

= Discount unwind within ECL duse o the passage of time, as ECL Is measured o0 a present value basis;

*  Financlal assets derecognised during the period and write-offs of allowances related to assets that were
written off during the pesiod.

Thie fallowing tabies expiain the changes in the loss aflowance between the beginning and the end of the annual
period due bo these lactors:

General approach (Retail & Whalesale)

12 month ECL  Lifetime ECLmot  Lifetime ECL Total
ereditimpaired credit-impaired

$'D00 5000 5'0m0 5000
Opening balance as at 1 April 2018 38,004 30527 17,969 BT 000
f{cabotated under ARSE 5)
Changes due o fimandal assets recogniyed in the
opening balance and during the year that hawe:
~Transferred to 12 mantha CCL (12,090] 13.925] 11.337] 117,352)
“Tranuforred to Lifetime ECL nat credil impaied |1,506) 15,997 {1,112) 1331
<Transferred to Lifetirg ECL credit impalnad {5246] {1.530) 6,029 14973
Eemeasurest ent (B.188) 5,568 11,124 BS04
Financial assets derecognised curing the penod
olher than write-oifs [4.293] 13.173) {2626] o)
Mew fnancial assets orginated or purchased 30,096 - . 30,096
Write-off [7at) {1,692 {10,116 |14, 503)
Balance at 31 Maerch 3013 40,896 40173 19,931 101,000
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Lending {continued)

5. Impairment of financing assets (continued)

Simplified approach [Fleet)
Lifetime ECLmot  Lifetime ECL Total
credit-impaired  credit-impalired
£'000 $'000 5'000
Dpening halance as at 1 April 2018 22,707 1,755 24,462
[ealeulated under AASE 9)
Changes due to financial assets recognised in the
opening balance and during the year that have:

“Transferred to Lifetima ECL nok credit impaired [2,255) {367] {2,623}
Transferred ta Lifetime ECL cradit impaired (EL1] 1,718 1,622
Remeasurement [20,748) {1,358] [22,204)

Financial azsets derecognised during the perlod

ather than writc-offs (1,434) [2048] (1,642)
Maw financial assets originated or purchased 14,734 - 14,734
Write-offs 121] [329) (450}
Balance at 31 March 2019 12,789 2211 15,000

Aetall, Wholesale and Fleet receivables are written off when there is no reasonable exspectation of recovery of
debt, Indicators that these iz na reasanabie expectation of recovery include, but are not limited to, the following:
= Failure of the debitor 1o engage with or enter into a repayment plan with the company; or
= The debtor has been placed undes liguldation; of
»  The debtor has entered into bankruptey proccedings, and the company determines that the debtor
does mot have assets or sources of income that could gererate sufficient cath flow bo repay the amounts
subject to write-off,
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9. Impairment of financing assets (continued)
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Aeconclliation of the gross carrying amount of receivables Tor which provision is made are as below:

Retall & Wholesale receivabiles

12 month ECL  Udedfme ECLmot  Lifetime ECL Total
credit-impaired credit-impained
$'000 $00 §'000 $7000

Groas carrying amount s at 1 April 2018 13,480,643 E64 357 44,128 14,185,138
Trandhers:

Changes due ta financial sssets recognised in the

cpening balance and duting the year that have

~Transferred te 12 months ECL [7#4,838) (103,955} (3,554} (183 .347]
~Tramsferred to Lifetime ECL not credit impaired {141,533 316437 {2.885) 171,609
Tranaderred te Lifetime ECL credit impaired [36,25E) {14,858) 61,850 10,738
Change in balance (1,668, a80] {HG,BET) (5.563) (1.720,909)
Hew finenclsl assets originated or purchased 5,045,037 - 5,045,037
Financial assets derecognised during the pericd

other than write-offs [1,911,532) [71,213) (7288) (1,990,034
Write-olts {52,802} |25, 752 [25,806) [109.400)
Balance st 31 March 2019 14,618,704 714,111 59,522 154138313
Fleet recelvables

Lifetime ECL ot Lifetime ECL Total
credit-impaired  credit-Impaired
5000 §'000 5’000

Gross carrying amount as at 1 April 2018 1462220 1,993 1,465,213

Transfers:

Changes due to financial assets recagnised in the

opening balance and diering tha year that have:

-Transfersred to Lifetime ECL not credit impaired {10,510} {955) {11,465}

“Transferred to Liletime ECL eredit impaired [2,291) 13,756 11,4B5
Change in balance (276,061) {400] (276,861)
Mew financial assers originated or gurchased 942,318 942,318
Financial riiets derecognised during the period

ather than write-offs {332,224 (L1 (332,890}
Wite-olfs | 10,B68) [1,133) |L2,001)
Balance at 31 March 2019 1,772,584 13,595 1,786,179
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Lending (continued)

9. Impairment of financing assets (continued)
Significant accounting estimote and judgement

The conselidated entity assesses, on a forward-looking basiz, the ECL ausociated with its loan and receivable
assets carried at amortised cost and motar vehicles under operating trase and recognises a loss allowance for
such losies at each reparting date. The measurement of ECL reflecty:
*  An unbissed and probabiity-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible
aulCOmes;
& Thetime value of maney; and
» Heasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting
date about past events, current conditons and forecasts of future economic conditions,

Significant accounting estimate and judgement (FY2018)

The consalidated entity applies signilicant sstimates and assumptions to make reasonable [udgements on
carrying amounts of financing assets. One area that mvolves a high level of judgements or complexity of
estimates and assumptions is impairmient of loans and receivables and motor velhictes under operating lease.

Callectabitity of financing assets & reviewed on an ongoing basis Financing assets which are known to be
uncollectable are written off. & provision for impalmment of financing assets is established when there is
objective evidence that the comsolidated entity expeciy not to be able to collect all amounts due according 1o
the eriginal terms of the coniract. The amount of the provision Is the difference between the asiet's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash fiows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial assets ariging! effective interest rate [le., the cffective interest rate
computed at initial recogrition), The amount of the bost s recognised in profit or loss.
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Funding

In this section, the focus is on debt funding of the consolidated entity, Further information is provided on debt
issuance and credit tacllities available to manage lguidity risk.

10, Due to banks and other financial institutions

Consolidated Consolidated
2019 2018
5000 $'000
Banks and other financial institutions 5084 BT 5,115,776
Total due to banks and other financial Institutions 5084 875 5115776
Maturity analysis
Currant
Banks and other financlal institutions 2,389,257 2316,164
Total current 2,389,257 2316164
Han-current
Banks and gther financial institutions 2,695,622 2,799,612
Total non-current 1,695,622 2,799,612
Total due ta banks and other financial Institutions 5,084,879 5,115,776

Included in the "Due to banks and other Tinancial institutions™ is securitised debt of $3,25000 milllon a4 at 31
March 2019 {2018: $3,078.6 million| representing the value of term loans held by external parties in the special
purpose entitles. The special purpose entities issued interest-bearing notes to third parties amounting to
£3,250.2 million as at 31 March 2019 [2018: 53,0786 million]. The compary holds the balance of the special
purpose enthties of 5852.1 million a3 st 31 March 2019 (2018: 5812.7 million), 54,102.3 million loans and
receivables are plodged as collateral for the senior notes under securitisation as af 31 March 2019 {2018:
53,891.3 millian),

The interest payable on the secured notes as at 31 March 2019 amounted to 52.8 million [2018: 526 milion)
and ks included Iin “accrued Interest payable®.
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Funding (continued)

11. Bonds and commarcial paper

Coniolidated Consolidated
2019 018
%000 s'000
Domestic cormmercial paper E96,605 1,134,721
Domestic medium term nate 1,007,940 1,173,083
Ewro commercial paper 1,943 684 1,35E 609
Eure redium term note 6,758,909 6307222
LS commercial paper 1488918 1,440,265
Tatal bonds and commerdal paper 13,106 166 11,414,000
Maturity analysls
Currenl
Baonds and commercisl paper 5802 656 6,585417
Nen-current
Bonds and commorcial paper 7,303,510 4,828,583
Total bands and commerndal paper 13,106,166 11414000

Bonds and commereisl paper are |nltially recognised at fair value, net of tranipetion costs incurred, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transacilon codts) and
the fedemplion amaunt i recognised in the mcome statement over the period of the bands or cammercial
paper using the effective Interest methad.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the sequisition of Bsue of a financial Rability are included in
the initial recognition of the financial irstruments

Holders of any outstanding bonds, debentures, notes and other Investment securities and commercial papers
summsised in the tables albove have the benefit of Credit Support Agreements gavernied by Inpanese law, ane
etween Toyota Motor Corporation and Toyota Financial Servioes Conporation dated 14 July 2000, and the others
between Toyeta Financlal Serdoes Corporation and the company dated 7 August 2000,

12. Securitisation and transferred assets

I the normal course of business, the consalidated entity enters into transactions by which it transfers financial
assets 1o Speclal Purpose Entities [SPE's). These transfers do not give rise to de-recagnition of those financlal
sssets for the consofidated entity.

Sacuriticalion

Torm lpans securitised under the company's securitisation programs are equitably sisigned ta bankraptey
remale SPE"s. The consolidated entity is entitled to any residual income of the secunitisation program afier all
paymants due to investors have been met in addition, where derivatives are transacted between the SPE™ and
the parent, such that the parent retains exposire to the variability in cach flaws froem the transferred term loans,
the loans will continue to be recognited on the parent’s balance sheet, The investors have full recourse only to
the term loans wegregated into the SPE"s.

]|
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Funding {continued)

12, Securitisation and transferred assets (continued )

Consolidated Consolidated
019 FLE
£°000 5'000
Carrying amount of transferred assets 4,102,374 1,851,300
Carrying amount of associ ated liakil it 3,250,254 3,078,619
Het position lor carrying amount 852,120 B12,681
Fair value of transferred assets 4 465,774 4,144.435
Fair value of associated liabilities 3278411 3,101,812
Net position for fair value amount 1,191,363 1,142,683
13. Credit facilities
Consolidated Conzolidated
2015 018
‘000 $'‘ono
Amaunt avallable:
Bonds, commprcial paper and term loans 31,324,742 19,410,742
Maney market 1,331,800 BLO.000
Bank averdraft 4,00 4,000
Securitisation
-Senior Note 4,080,000 4,080,000
-Merraning Note 1,120,000 1,120,000
Amount utillsed:
Bonds, commerciaf paper and term loans 15,004,163 13,506,153
Maoney market " A
Bank overdratr
Securititation
“Senior Note 3,250,254 3,073,619
-Merranine Note 852,120 813,632
Amount not utilised:
Bonds, commercial paper and term loans 16,320,580 5904530
Money rmarket 1,331 200 B50,000
Bank overdraft 4,000 4,000
Securitisation
“Senior Note B19,Tab 1,001,381
-Mezraming Note 267 2RO 307318

Medium term note and commereial paper programs

Mediem term note and commercial paper progeems Bllow the company to wue medem term nates and
commercial paper in either Australian of overseas markets up to 3 total of 524.8 bilkon (2018: 5143 billion).
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Funding [continued)

13, Credit faellities (continued)
Medlum term note and commarcial pager programs (continwed)

In the eurrent financial vear, Toyota Financial Services Corpaeation allocated 54,0 billlon domestic medwem term
note facility ta the eampany [2018: 52.0 hilion). Subject to meeting conditions prescribed in the program
dacumentation, the company can lssue commiercial paper and miesdium term notes to purchasers at any thme,

Credit support agreement

Haidiers af debt securities issued by the company may have the benefit of Credit Support Agregments governed
by lapanese law, one between Toyota Mator Corporation [“TMC) and Toyota Financlal Services Corporation
[“TFSC") dlated 14 luly 2000, and the other bevween TFSC and the company dated 7 August 2000 {together, the
“Credit Support Agrecments” |

Secuwities with respect to which o Trustee i appointed

The Trustee, Unlon Bank of California WA, will have the right ta elaim in favour of the holders of such securities
directly against TFSC and TMC to perfarm the'r respective obligations under the Credit Support Agreements by
rmaking & written daim together with o declaration to the effect that such holders will have recourse to the rights
given under the Credit Suppart Agreements, IF TFSC and/for TME receive such a claim from the Trustee, TFSC
andfar TMLC shall indemn iy, without further action or farmality, the holders against any loss or damage resulting
from the faillure of TFSE and/for TMC to perfarm any of thelr respective obligations under the Credit Suppart
Agreements, The Trustee may then enforce the indemnity directly against TFSC and/ar TMC in favour of such
holders. i the Trustee, having besome bound to proceed directly against TRSC and/or TMC, fails to do o wathin
a reasonable period thereafter to protect the interests of the holders of sueh securities, and such fallure shall
be continuing, the holders of such tecurities may themselves take the actlons mentioned abave.

Securities with respect fo which o Trudlee i nof appointed

Holders of swech securities will have the right to cleim directly against TFSC and TMC to perform their respective
obligations under the Credit Suppert Agresmeants by making a written claim together with & declaration Lo the
effect that the holder will have recourse 1o rights given under the Credit Suppon Agreemaents. If TFSC and/for
TMC receive such 8 elaim froem any hodder of such securithes, TRSC andfor TMC shall indemnify, withoul any
further action or formalivg, the holder against any boss or damage resuling fram the failure of TFSC and/for TMC
to perform any of their respective obligations under the Credit Support Agreements. The holder of swsch
segurities who made the claim may then enfionce the Indemnity directly against TPSC and/ar TMC

In consideration for the Credit Support Agreements, a Credit Support Fee Agreement was entered into between
TFSC and the company as at 30 March 2001 The Credit Support Fee Agreement provides that the company will
pay to TFSC a fee equivalent to a percentage of tha weighted average outstanding amaunt of the eompany’s
medium term notes and commescial paper that have the beneflit of the Credit Support Agreemerts.

The directors are not aware of any Instances of a written claim and declaration under the terms of the Credit
Support Agregments, in connection with the eampany’s outstanding medium term notes and commaential papes

Maney market facilitios
The campany has access to 50.97 hillion of uncommitted and $0.3 billion of committed money market faclities

as at 31 March 2019 (2018: $0.55 billion uncommitied and $0.3 billign committed) reipectively provides by
various financial institutions. The company %50 has socess 1o & Masier Credit Facility as disclosed below,

a3
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Funding |continued)

13. Credit facilities (continued)

Master credit facility (MCF)

354 Day Credit Agreement, Three Fear Credit Agreement and Five Yeor Credlt Agrecment

The MCF between the company ard ether Toyota affiliates was renegotiated in November 2008 where a USS5.0
billion 364-doy syndicated bank credit facility, 8 US55.0 billion three years syndicated bank eredit Facility and o
US55.0 billion five year syndicated bank credit facifity, expiring In Novernber 2019, 2021, and 2023, respectvely,
were renewed.

The ability to make drawdowns i subject to covenants and conditions customary in transactions of this nature,
inchading negative pledge provisiens, cross-default provisions and limitations an certain consalidations, mengers
and sales of aszpts These agreements may be used for general corporate purpeses and none were drawn upon
as at 31 March 2019, The company & [n compliance with the covenants and eanditions of the eredit agreements
deacribed abowe.

Bank overdraft

The bank overdraft Is an unsecured 54.0 miflion facility as at 31 March 2019 {2018: 54.0 million]. Interest is
cherged at prevailing market rates, The bank averdralt is payable on demand and subject to annual review,
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Capital management

This section cowers the capital structure of the consolidated entity.

14, Contributed equity
Consolidated Conselidated

2019 1018
$'000 £'000
Ordinary shares fully paid 120,000 120,000

AL 31 March 2019 there were 120,000,000 ordinary shares fully paid.

Ordinary shanes entitte the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the consolidated
entity in proportion o the number af and amaunts paid on the shares held,

On a show of hands every holder of ordinary shares predent 8t & meeting in gersen or by prowy ks entithed to one
wote and, upon a poll, each share i entitled to one vole,

15. Reserves

Consolidated Consolldated

018 018
'0D0 000
Forelgn currency translation resere
Balamoeat 1 April 5274 3425
Het exchange differences an translstion of forel gn 1535 1,849
Balence ot 31 March 6,809 5274

Faveign currency translation reserve

Exchange differences arising on wranslation of imestments accounted for using the equity method is taken 10
the forelgn currency translation reserve, The reserve is subsequently recognised in profic and loss when the net
inwestrment is disposed af.
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Capital management |continued)

16, Retained earnings

Consolidated Consolidated

2019 2018

5'000 000
Balance a1 1 April 1,251,510 1,111,352
Change |n accounting policy (Mote 37) 16,884 -
Restated retsined earmings at 1 April 2018 1,269404 1,111,352
Prafit attributable ta owners of the parent 143,955 148,059
Total available for appropriation to cwners of the parent 1413363 1,355,411
DCividends pald (42,037 [6,891]
Balance at the and of the perad 1,371,326 1,252,520
Dividends
Fully-franked final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2019
of 35 cents {31 March 2018: 5.7 cents| per fully paid share. 42,037 6,891
Tatal dividends paid 42,037 6,851

Under the income tax consolidation regime, the franking account balarce of the company as at 1 April 2003 was
permanently transferred to the head entity of the consalidated tax group. The company ceases 1o have &
franking accoum during the time it rema‘ns a member of the consolidated group.

The income tox consolidation rules do permit the company Lo pay & Tranked dividend to its shareholder with the
head entity's lranking account bearing a reduction for the franking credit attached to the dividend, Dividends
pald during the yesr ended 31 March 2019 were Tully franked,

Provision |8 made for the amount of any dvidend declared on or before the end of the year but not distributed
at tha end of each repoting period
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Financial Instruments and risk

This sectbon covers the financial instruments held by the consolldated entity Including dervative and non-
derivative financial instrurnents and financial risk managemant information.

17. Derivative financial instruments

Consalidated Consalidated

2018 1018
s'noo 55000

Asiets
Intevest rale Swlp contracts 50,963 18,500
Cross currency swap contracts 05,440 136,583
Forward foreign exchange contracts 21,032 47817
Derivative financial instrument assets. 178 A44 313,300
Less: Bilateral credit valuation adjustrment 1667] 1167]
Total derfvative finandal instrument assets - mepsered ot falr value 77 313,133
Liskdlithes
Inlerest rate swap contracky 110097 50,147
Cross currency swap contracty 24,113 B4,322
Forward foreign exchange contracts 9,213 136
Total dervative financlal Instrurment Babilities - measured ot fair value 143422 135,265
Current derivative financlal instruments
Derivative financial assets. 116,713 245,962
Derivative financial liabilines 20B&7 ErPEELE
Non-cursent derivative finoncial instruments
Derivative fi nancial assets 161,064 67171
Derivative financial liabilites 122555 103,034

Measurement

The coniolidated entity uses derlvatives not designated in a qualifying hedging relationship, 1o manage is
exposure to foreign currency and interest rate risks, Dervative financlal assets and Fabilitles are initially
recognised at fair value on the date & derivative contract is entered into and are subseguently remeasured to
their falr value at the end of each repoiting period. The dervatives have not been designated as hedging
instruments conseguently, changes in the fair value of dertvatives are recognised immediately in profit o loss
a1 ierest expense and similar charges. This may, 1o the extent that they sre not offse by the transiation of the
ftems econamically hedged, Introdude volatiity in the consolidated entity’s profit or loss and prodece anomalous
resulls,

Foir value estimation

Thie fair va'ue of financlal imstrumaents traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives) is based on
guaoted market prices at the end of the regorting period. The quoted market price wsed for financial instruments
held by the company is the mid-price.

The lale value of the financial icstruments that are not traded In @ active market {ower-the-counter derivatives)
i determined using valuation technigues, The fair value of interest rate Swaps and cross CUrrency Swaps is

calculated as the present value af the estimated future cash flows. The fair value of foreign exchange contracts
is determined using the forward exchange market rates at the end of the reporting periad.

I
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Financial instruments and risk {continued)

17. Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Bilateral eredit waluation odjushments

The credit valuation adjustment |s an adjustment to the falr valuee of the derlvative instruments to account for
the consnterparty credit risk (CCR). It is the credit spreads of both the group and the counterparty, together with
market factors, that drive the hélateral credit valuation adjustments,

Significant accouwnting estimates

The consolidated entity applies significant estimates and assumptions to make reasonatle judgements on
carrying armounts of assets and fabilities. One area that volves a high level ol estimates or compleasty of
assumptions [s denivative financial instrurnents.

Fiair werliee hierarehy
The tahle below analyses financial instruments carried at fair values, by valuation method. The different levals
are defined as follows:

Level 15 quoted prices (unadjusted] in active markets for Identical assets or Hakilities

Leved 2! inpuns other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liaility, either directly (8. as prices) ar indirectly (1,2, derived from prices)

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data

The consolidated entity's financial instruments that are measured and recognised a1 fair value are derivative
assets and derlvative Rabilities used for hedging {ie. [nterest rate swaps, cross currency swaps and forward
exchange contracts), While these instruments are used for economiz hedging, the consolidates entity does not

apply hedge aceaunting.
AS AT 31 MARCH 2019 Leval 3 Lavel 2 Lavel3 Tatal
$'ooa #'000 §'000 soop
Derhvative fnancial ssets
through profit or lats
Derivatives wsed for economic hedging
Foreign exchange contracts - 22,032 - 22,032
Interest rate iwaps - 156,412 - 256412
Less; Bitateral CVA - {BGT) - [G&T)
Total finamclal assets - Ty - 7.
Derivative Fnancial Rabilities
through profit or loss
Derivatives wsed for economic hedging
Foreign exchange contracts . 5,212 - 9,112
Interest rate dwaps . 134,210 - 134,210
Tatal financial Babilities . 143422 . 143422
38
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)

17. Derbvative finandal instruments (continued|

Fair value hierorchy fcontinued)
AS AT 31 MARCH 2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
4'000 5'000 S'000 4'000
Derivative financial assets
through profit or los
Derivatves used for economic hedging
Fareign eschange coniracts = 47,817 £ 47817
Interest rate Swaps . 265483 . 765,483
Less: Bilatera’ CVA - 167} - |167]
Tatal finsncisd assets = 313,133 + 313,133
Derivative finencisl FRabilties
through profit or loss
Derivatives used for economic hedging
Faneign sechamge contracts - 156 . 156
Intereat rate swaps . 134,465 r 134,469
Total financial liabilities - E!_EH . 135365

18, Mon-derivative financial imstruments

Furir vialue easiarernern s

Thie fair walue of Anangial sssets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement or
for discksaure puiposes, Estimated discounted cash fows are used to determine Fair value for financal
instruments.

Thie tablie befow summarises the carmging amounts and the lair values of those financlal zssets and llabilithes not
presented on the consolidated entity’s balance sheet at fair value,

Consolidated Consolidated
piiit ) 2018
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amaunt valug amont value
$'000 $'000 5000 5'000
Finmncisl pisets
loans and recedvables 1B 490,459 20,028 93 16,763,347 18,170,841
Firancial Eabliities
Dwue to banks and pther fimancial fnstltut pns 5,084.8TY 51331473 5,115,776 5,163 646
Bonds and commesrcial paper 13,106,166 133845108 11,404,000 11,528,502
15 191045 18497 791 16,529,776 16,6092 1458

The carrying ampunts of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their falr values due to
their short term nature. The fair value of the loans and receivables 1§ estimated a1 portfalio level by discounting
the contractual cash flows using current lending rates. The fair value of financial llabllitkes Is estimated by
discaunting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that [ available (o the
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Financial instruments and risk {continued)
18, Non-derivative financial instruments (continued]

conwoddated sntity Tor simiar finantial instrusments. The (air value of current borfowings aparoximates the
camying amaount, as the impact of dscounting is not significant,

19, Dffsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Fimanclal assets and Fabifities are offset and the not amount reported In the statement of financial position
whese the consalidaned entity eurrently has a legally enfoscesble fght ta offser the recognised ameunts, and
there is intention to settle on & net basls or realise tho assel and settfe the liabifity simultaneously, The
consofidated entity has also enlered inlo arrangements that da not meet the criteria for offsetting but still alow
Tor the related amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such as ratings downgrade or event of default,

The following table presents the recognised fimancial instruments that are offset, or subject 1o enforceable
master netting arrangesments but not offset, as at 31 March 2019, The column 'net amount” shows the impact
on the consalidated entity's statement of fimancial postion If set-off nights were exercised.

Difect: of sffeeiting on the 1atement of fnencal position Aelated amounts mod oMt
Geoas Met
set-ollisthe  presented in subjed 1o
L tel e it z e
GiFerin finngial of fieanelsl neliing (51
muouity Boition poslten arrangementi  Collimersl Mot amouey
W #'000 §000 000 $ano Saco $'pod
Financial sty
Cash and caah peulvabents ) 1416603 - 1,416,503 . L4060
Lawan and fecrivabied 17076013 * 1067 + (ELT Tk
Derivattve Brancial initnemonts () 7 - T [E290%1]  [2%,0001 125,104
Cher paets [a) Ta.593 21,861 S6.73F - 56711
Total TN [T [V TE R ] [173073] —@so0] 8 67ADS)
Fisiirscisl Maliklses
Dui o Bunies B otbes F B 508478 . 5,084,870 . . 5,084,470
Derivative lirancial (matramets jbf 143,827 B 143,637 (125,073 [is,500] 12851
Cuher babiitiey G} 455,123 [11,861) 443,161 . . 443 761
Tatsl 5,693,423 [1.861) 5571562 f129.033] _ (16900} 5525549
ELiE]
Financial miets
Cash and cash eguivalents o] LI 62 . 1282, 624 1282424
Lasan and recevabies 15 504,768 - 15,504,768 ] 15,509,768
Dt hwalive lanelal sitrsn (b} 13,133 - 143,133 11036831 (u.200} 04,34
Dehi suiwts (4] 5 AR {11654y ATi4 - = 17,114
Tatal 17 3 [EEILH 11443630 LT 1200 12,007,146
Financiad Habdives
Duie o Banis B otbes F1 5] 5115776 5,115,776 ! ! 5415,776
Gethvative liraneial isdtruments [ 135,365 - 135,265 RLEXEE] .00 25,572
Cxhey Vabditiey ji) A0S lihEda) ATOETL . - 47067
Tatal 5,141,408 119.804) 57103 1oend) _ jeseo) 5812018
40
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)

18. Offsetting financial assets and financlal Habllitles (continued]
[a) OMsetting arrangements

Other pisets ond lobilitfes

On the who'esale dealer statements, monthly financing and other recerables rom dealershaps are offset against
manthly commilsians and ather payables to dealerships. The amounts are sottled and preserted net in the
staternent af financial position.

{b) Master netting arrangements and set-off arrangements = not currently enforceable

Derivative transactions with counterparties ane covered by ISDA agreements; term loans and cash deposits are
covered by standand agreements. Under the terms of these arrangemerits, upan an event of default, a ratings
dowrgrade to @ certain level or an early termination event, the net amount owing to or receivable fram a
counterparty in the same currency will be faken as due and the arrangement will be terminated. Since no such
event subsists and the consnlidated entity has na othes legaily enfarceable right of set-off, these amounts have
not been set ofl in the statement of financial position but have been presented separately in the table aboyve,
Collateral may be posted daily in respect of cenain desivathves transacted with any counterparty covered by a
Credit Support Annex for Varation Margln agreements.

20. Financial risk management

The consolidated entity’s activities expase It to & variety of financial risks: markes risk {including ousrency risk
ang interest rate risk], credit rsk liguidity risk and residual value risk, The comolidated entity’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and used vehlcle markets and seehs
1o mangge potential adverse effects on the financlal performance of the consalidated entity.

The consolidated entity does not enter into or trade financia! instruments, including derivative financial
instruments, for speculative purposes. Derieative financial instrements are wied ta manage the consolidated
entity's exposure to currency flsk and Interest rate risk. The residual value risk of the consolidated entity arises
ma:nly feom receivables under aperating bease and loans with guaranteed Tuture value.

Risk management is carmed out by various committees and departments based an charters approved by the
sanior management in accordanee with the company's Enterprise Risk Managemant Framework. These inchade:

Entarprize Risk Manepement
Enterprive Risk Management process is established with the purpose of driving an appropriate risk culture across
the enterprise and enabling the organisation to achiewe its business goals. This function i discharged by the
Senlor Executive Team [SET].

Asset/Linbllity ond Pricing Committee
The Asset/Lisbility and Pricing Committes meets Lo

* proacively and cotlaboratively manoge and monitoer the interesy rate and liquidity risks of the
consalidated entity; and

®  actively 055045 new business marging in connection with volume and interest rate reguirements, and a
thanging inberest rate and competitor environment,

The consolidated entity’s treasury department ldentifles, evaluates and hedges financial risks. The treasury
department implements the consolidated entity’s palicies to manage the consalidated entity's foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk, [iquidity risk and credit risk with banks and other financial Intermediaries.
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Financial instruments and risk {continued)
20. Financial risk management [continued)

Rt Credit Aisk Commitree

The Retall Credit Risk Committee s responsible for the risk assessment, ongoing mansgement, callection,
enforcement and write-aff of monies lent by the company ta retail customers, The committee ensures that the
care credit operations of the company are aligned with the corporate goals and objectives.

Commerncial Credit Transaction Foruwm

The Commercial Credit Transaction Forum s responsible for the review of high risk Dealer and Fleet sccounts,
review of partfolio Key Risk Indicators and acts a3 & farum for delegated authosity holdess to discuss funding
requests.

Residual Volue Committes

The Residual Value Committes undertakes to measure and assess residual values on assets based on Best
practice and eritical varlable information such as wsed ear markel dynamics, economic conditians, gevernmantal
palicies/regulations, the crodit market and the conditions of assets under lease/with guraranteed future value,
It reparts & matters with potential impact on residual value of astets and all ather matters which would mitigate
potential residual value risks to the consolidated entity.

Audit Committes

The Awdit Committee is tasked to assist the Board of Directors of the company and management in the sxercise
of its oversight responsibilities over the systems of internal contral, internal audit activitles and enduring a
conklant communication amangst the Audit Committee, management, external awdit and internal awdit.

Comphiance Committer

The Complianee Comenittee is reaporaie far the establishment, publication and malntenance of the
compEance framework to manage the consolidated entity’s compliance with all the Laws, regulations and codes
of practice that apply to the business and the maintenance of the company’s ACL and AFS Licenses,

Internel Awdi

The internal audit department provides independent, objective assurance and consulting activities designed to
add valug and imgrove the consadidated entity’s operations. It assists managernent in [dentifying and mitgating
risks, pnd recognising kaizen opporlunities through its review of business processes, systems, controds,
enviranmaent and activities,

Product Committer

The Product Committee is established to review new and existing produscts and services Inchuding the
development of the company’s market place strategy for product and service development and roadmap
considerations.

fal  Market risk

fil  Foreign exchonge risk
The consolidated entity opsrates in international capital markets o obtain debt funding to suppart s
earning assets. Transactions may be denominated in forelgn currencies, exposing the consolidated entity
10 lorelgn exchange risk arising from various currency exposures,
Foreign exchange risk arise from recognised assets and liabilities denominated in currency that is not the

entity's functional currency &nd net investments in foreign operationa. The risk is measured wing debt
maturity analysis.

42

160/288



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000000000000(E05954)
Oooooooa

Financial instruments and risk (continued)

20. Financial risk management {continued)
a) Market risk [continued]
il Forelgn exchange risk (continued)

Management has set up a paliey requlring the consolidated entity to manage its foreign exchange risk
againit its funetional curmency, The consalidated entity Ie required 1o economically hedge 100% of its
foreign exchange risk ot the fime of debt issuances. Derivative nancial instruments. are entered into by
the conzolidated entity to hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk, including:

= Forwerd exchange centracts Lo hedge the forelgn currency risk arising on the issue of commercial
paper In forelgn currendies and affiliated entity loan, and

& Cross currency swaps b manage the fereign currency and interest rate risk associated with foreign
cufrenty denominated medism term notes, bank koans and US commercial paper.

The consolidated entity's net exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period ended
31 Manch 2009 is immaterial, There has been no change in this pasition when compared o the reporting
perigd ended 31 March 2018

1) Cosh flow and foir valur intevest rote risk

Cash flow and fair value Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of & financial Enstrument will
fuctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The consolidated entity is expoted ta the effects of
Thuctuations in the prevalling levels of market inferet rated a4 it borrows and lends funds at both floating
and fived intersst rates. Derivative financial instruments are entered into by the consolidated entity to
ecanomically hedge its expasure to cash flow and fair value interest rate risk, including

. Fimed-to-floating intérest rate swaps to manage the interest rate risk generated by the consolidated
entity’s eaming assets. Such interest rate swaps hawve the economic effect of converting loans and
recehvables fram fixed rates to floating rates;

®  Fixed-to-floating interest rate Swaps (o manage the interest rate risk generated by the consalidated
entity’s functlonal currency denominated fiued rabe mediurn Lerm notes and bank loans. Such mterest
rate swaps have the econarric eff ect al converting borrowings from fixed rates to floating rates; and

»  Cross currency swaps Lo rmanage the fareign currency and interest rate risk associated with loreign
currency denominated medium term notes, Wscommercial paper and bank koans, Such oross currency
swaps have the economic effect of converting bofrowings lrom lareign denominat ed fixed or fioating
rates o functionl currency Moating rates,

Under the interest rate swaps, the consolidated entlty agrees with other parties to exchange, a1 specified
intervals [rmainly guarterly], the difference between fixed contract rates and floating rate interest amounts
calculated by reference Lo the sgreed notional principal amounts. Under the cross currency swaps, the
consolidated entity agrees with other parties to exchange, at specified intorvals, foreign currency principal
and fixed {or floating] rate interest amounts, and functional eurrency peintipal and floating rate interest
amounts calculated with reference to the agreed functional currengy principal amount.

The consalidsted entity’s palicy = to maintain most of its debt exposure In its functional currency at floating
rate, using Interest rate Swaps or Cf06s currency swaps to achieve this when necessary

The following toble detadls the consolidated entity's exposure 1o interest rate risk as at the end of the
reparting period,

43

161/288



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000000000000(E05954)
Oooooooa

Finamcial instruments and risk (continued)
20. Financial risk management [continued)
[a) Market rish {continued)

{4} Cash flow and foir volue interest rate risk fcontinued)

2019 Warlable Flaed Nan
Consolidated Interest Interest Interest

Rate Rate Bearing Tatal

£'000 'ona $'000 4'Doa
Operating lease recelvable: ] 1,454, 367 - 1454 367
Financial assets
Cash and liguid assets 1416603 . = 1416503
Loans amd receivabbes 4475417 11,714,595 E 17.200.012
Inletest rale swaps 131 070,000 [15,070,000} = =
Dher assets . = 56,732 56,732
Tewal fimamtial assets 16,962,020 3,108, %2 56,737 0,137,714
Financlal liabilities
Banks B other finapeial ingtitutions 5084879 - 5084879
Commercial papers 4320317 - - 43249317
Mediem term notes B25,050 1,947,753 = B.776.849
Crass curmency swaps 3520066 [3,520 046 - -
Interemt rale swaps 4,351 9040 (4,351,500} . .
Cher liahilities . E 443,761 443761
Contract Rabdities = = E0.830 E083H
Total fimamcisl Nabdlities I!.llﬁﬁ 75813 514,061 1B, 715,116
Neet Financial axsets fllabilities) [1,153,212]] 3,033,149 | [67,359]] 1A12,578

1018 Varlabie Fised Hen
Comiolidated Interest Interest Interest

Rate E Bearing Total
L. S'0on £'00 5000 & 0a0
Operstng bease recehvables = 1276397 = IE?E.‘H’
Fimanclal assets
Cash and ligusid assets 1,282 64 - - 1,781 64
Loans and receivables 3 EB0 655 11,773,681 - 15,654,351
Interest rate swaps 10,200,250 [10,200,250) . .
Drher ooty - - 37,114 azild
Total financial astets 15,363 511 X RSO 40 37114 18,251,087
Financial [isbilities
Banks & other fnancal institulions 53115776 = = 5,115,778
Commercial paper: 3,933 GRE . . 3033 GRG
Medium term notes £#97,525 6,582,785 - TARO 314
Croas clefrency 1Wwaps 2372600 {2,273 ,601] - -
Interest rate swaps 4235500 (4,2 55,900] . d
Oithes [iabifitieg - - AT0,E71 470,671
Total fimancial liabilities 16455488 74,288 470,671 17,000,447
Mek financial ssvels)[Habilities] 1,091,955 2776152 [433,557) 1,750,640 |

44

162/288



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000000000000(E05954)
Oooooooa

Financial instruments and risk {continued)

20, Financlal risk management (continued)

{a} Market risk [continued)

i} Sentitnaty

The consalidated entity's financial results ore exposed 10 interest rate movements in the market. Shown below

i the patentizl impact of a 1% increase in interest rate on the consolidated entity's pre-tax profins for the next
twelve months. A 1% decrease in (nterest rate has an opposite impact of the same amaunt.

Consolidated Consalidated
2019 2018
4000 5000
Interest rates = increase by 100 basis points in [3.314)

(b} Eredit rizk

Thie contalidated entity takes on exposure ta credit rish, which [s the risk that counterparty will cause a financial
loas for the consalldated entity by failing to discharge an obligation. Credit exposures arise principally from
leniding activities for fimancing ascets, funding sctivities such as cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks
and financial institutions and derdvative fimancial instruments.

{i] Inputs, asaumptions and estimaton techniques used for ECL models
Assesement of sigaicant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the risk of default has increased significantly sinte initial recognition, the
consolidated entity condiders both guantitative and guabitative information and anabysis based on the
consolidated entity's historical experience and expert credit risk assessment, including forward-looking
Information,

fetall facilities use the number of days past due (DPD) ta determine significant increase In credit risk. The
consolideted entity considers thot significant increase in credit risk occurs when an asset Is equal and more than
30 0PD.

For non-retall facilities, internally derived credit ratings have been identilied as representing the best sva'lable
determinant of eredit risk. The consolidated entity has adopted the Global Master Grading Model, which wat
initizlly developed by Toyota Financial Services Corparation and calibrated fo the Aistralia market. The grading
madel comprives 11 grading levels for instrurments not in delautt [1to 11] and one default class {12). The grading
made! i subject to anmual validation and recalibration so that it reflects the latest projections in the lght of all
actually ohserved defaults. The consolidated entity asiigns each facility & eredht rating, at initizl recognitien
based on available information about the borrower, Credit risk is deemed to have increased significantly if the
credit rating has significantly deteriorated at the reporting date relative ta the credis rating at the date of initial
recognition,

Definition af Defoult

I assessing the impairment of financial assets under the expecied credit loss model, the consolidated entity
cefines a recelvable asset as credit impaired if @ default rating is assigned to this asset in accordance with its
credit policy and procedures. Credit impaired expasure undes the sxpected eredit loss model consist of

*  Retsil losns snd non-rated fleet loans which are contractuatly past due 90 days.
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Flnancial nstruments and risk (continued)

20, Financial risk management [continued)

(b} Credit Fisk {continuped)
Definition of Defowlt foontinued)
= Mon-retall loans when it becomes obwvious that the customer i no longer able to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due.
s Impaired off-balance cheet credit exposures where eurrent circurmstances indicate that losses may be
ineurred.
Coiculaton of expected eredit lass

Expected credit losses are calowated using three main companents: PD, LGD and EAD. These parameters are
genefally derived from intermally developed statistical models combined with histarical, eurrent and forward-
looking customer and macra-econamic data.

Far accounting purpase, the 12 months and lifetime PD represent the expected point-in-time probability of a
default over the next 12 months and remaining lifetime of the financial instrument, respectively, bosed on
conditlons exigting at the balance sheet date and future economic conditions that affect credit risk. The LGD
represants expected loss conditkonal on default, taking into sccount the mitigating effect of collateral, its
an:p-ecred wilue when fesliied and the time valer of money,

Thie EAD represents the eupected exposure at default, taking into account the repeyrent ol principal and
Interest from the balance sheet date to the defaull event together with any espected drawdown of a facility.
The 12 manths ECL & egual to the discounted sum over the next 1 manth of manthly PO multiplied by LGD and
EAD, Lifetime ECL is calculsted using the discounted sum of monthly PD over the full remaining ife rrultiplied by
LGD and EAD,

incorparetion of forwaed-looking information

The consolidated entity has consideved @ range of relevant forwasd -looking Australia macro-economic scenarlo
and assumptions for the determination of unbissed economic forecast and industry adjustrment, that suppart
the calculation of probabiity weighted expected loss

These reflect reasanable and supportable forecast of future macra-ecanamic canditions that are not capiured
within the base ECL calculations. Macro-ecoromic factors laken inte consideration inclede, but are not fimited
o, wiernployment, interest rabes, gross domestic product and house price Index, and require an evaluation of
bath the current and forecast direction of the macre-economic cycle.

ircorporate forward-looking Infermation increases the degree of judgement required as to how changes in these
miacro-ecanamic factors will affect ECLs. The methodologies and assumptions including the chaiee af fulure
economic scenario are reviewed and determined by credit risk committoe on 3 quarterly basis,

Nerture and effect of modifications en the measurement of provision for doubtfil debis

A loan that is renegotiated ks derecognised if the exsting contract s cancelled and a new agreement made on
substantially different terms or if the terms of an existing agreement are modified such that the renegotinted

Ioan s substantially & different instrurment. Where such loans are derecognised, the renegotiated contract is 2
new lean and impairment [s assessed in accordance with the consolidated entity’s actounting palicy.
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)
20. Financial risk management [continued)
|b) Credit risk [continued|

Nature and effect of modifications on rhe measwrement of provisicn for doubtfid debis {continued)

when the renegotioted loans are not derecognised, impairment continues to be assessed for sgnificant
increases in credit risk compared to the Initial origination credit risk rating.

(i} Credit quolity and moximuam exposure
The consclidated entity’s financing assets are exposed to three areas: resall, lleet and wholesale.

Retoil
The retall portfolio is the largest area which comprises @ range of loans and recesvables from individual
consumers and small business,

Firet
The fleet portfolio comprises a range af loans and receivables and motor vehicles under operating lease from
smalt ta large commeseial elients and government bodies, it also ingludes novated leasing customers.

Cresdit risk arising fram indovidual consumaers and small business is managed through the application of credit
seaing and manual underwriting to identify and evaluate acceptable risks and portfelio diversificetion both
demographically and geographacally. Credit risk arising from fleet clients i managed by imposition and review
{at a minimum annually] of credit imits to ensure fleet dients have the capacity to setile finandal commitments.
Callateral is also used to secure funds advanced,

The consolidated entity wes proviioning models 1o assess the credit gquality of financing assets and estimates
provigion fod armoLnts not collectible. Asmounts not provided for are deemed collectible.

Wholesole
The whalesale portfolio indudes floar-plan finanee to motor dealers for new and used motor vebicle stock
under gither:
*  Abailment facility, under which motor wehicles are bailed by the company to a dealer, and the
eompany retaing awnership of each vehicle until the dealer sells it to a customes; or
«  Acharge plan facility, under which the company provides finance to & dealer for purchase of motar
vehitl et wihich are charged to the company as security,

in addition to the lloor-plan fadlities, the wholrsale portfalic also includes rerm Inans to dealerships 1o finance
property and presmises, and revalving working capital laans. These lnans are typlcally secured by general security
agreements, real property mortgages and personal guarantees.

Due 1o the nature af these facilities there is a concentration (n the motor vehicle dealership industry, with the
risk spread across market iocations throughout Australia. in addition to the collateral security oblained, credit
risk s managed through regular auditing of the dealerships vehicle Inventory, monthly monitaring of financal
peformance and oagoing annual reviews, The concentration of credit risk in relation Lo the two operating
segments is reflected in Note 7.
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)

20. Financial risk management [continued)

{b)  Credit risk {continued)

W] Credit risk expaswe by credit quolity

The table befow show the masimum exposure to credit risk by key class of financial assets, to which the
enpected cradit bois model is applied, based on how the consolidated entity manages the crodis righ:

= The days past due for retail and non-rated feat.
= The risk grade for non-retail portfolio,

Retoll (peneral epproach)
Loars and receivables
11 month ECL  Lifetbme ECLnot  Lifetime ECL Tatal
eredit-impaired  credit-impaired
S'000 S'000 £'000 S000
Equial to and less than 30 dayd 10568 B10 . . L0.5ERALD
31-60 days . 207,672 . FIVER T
6100 days - 44823 . 44823
Crver 30 days [credit impalred) - - 59912 59,922
Total 10,568,810 252,495 59,622 10,8E1,227
Whalesole fgeneral approach)
Loans and recelvables and undrawn credit limit
12 month ECL  Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL Total
credit-impaired  credit-impaired
5'000 5000 5000 5'000
Grade 1-7 Mormal Risk 4,070,988 214,384 = 4,285,372
Grade 5-11 Watchlist - 247,233 - 247,233
Grade 12 Default [oredit impaired) - - - -
Total 070,988 61,617 - 4532 605

Fleet non-groded customer (5impilified cpprooch)
Lease, loans and undrawn credit limits

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL Tatal
credit-impatred  credit-impadred
$'000 5000 $'000
Equal to and less than 30 days 373,242 L 373,242
31-60 days 5411 - 5411
61-90 days 2312 - 2,312
Crier 90 days (credit impaired) - 3208 3,108
Total 380 965 3,300 384,174
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)
20. Finanelal risk management (continued)
{6} Credit risk {continued)

(il Cradi risk exposure by credit quality frontinwed)
Fleat graded customer [simplified spprasth)

Lease, loans and undrawn credit limits

Lifetime ECLnot  Litetime ECL Total
eredit-impaired  eredit-impaired
5000 5’000 $'000
Grade 1-7 Normal Risk 1,358 837 - 1,358.837
Grade B-11 Watchlist 32,782 - 33,782
Grace 12 Default [eradit impaired] : 10,386 10,386
Total 1,391,619 10,386 1,402,005

(i) Funding octivities

The consolidated entity's treasury depasiment manages credit risk through the use of external rating such as
Standard and Poor’s rating o equivalent, counterparty diversification, monitoring of counterparty financial
condition and ensuring master netting agreaments are in place with all derivathve counterparties.

The below table shows the percentage of the consolidated entity’s money market deposits and derivatives
relating te funding activities, based an the Standard & Poor's rating

Consolidated Consolidated
Rating 2019 2018
% %
- ] 10
A 2 1]
A 90 ]
100 100

The magimum exposure 1o credit risk at the end of the reporting period, without taking into account collateral
obtained, s the carrying amount, ret of any allowance for doubtful debts or impairment, of each financial asset,
inciud'ng derivative financial instruments, in the statement of financial pasition.

49

167/288



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000000000000(E05954)
ooOooood

Financial instruments and risk {continued)

20. Financial risk management [continued)
{g] Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk s the risk that the consalidated entity is unable to meet s payment obligations associated with s
financial liabilitics wihen they fall due and to replace funds when they are withdrawn, The cansequence may be
fallure to meet obligations 1o repay ereditors and fulfil commitments to lend, The conselidated entity, in the
rormal course of business, reguires substantial funding to support the level of its carning assets and working
capital requirements, and consequently is exposed te lguidiny risk.

The liquidity managerment processes carried oul by the treasury department includes:

. Day-to-day funding managed by monitoring esxsting amd future cash flows to ensure that
requiroments can be met, This includes planning replenishment of funds before they mature arfand
barrowed by custamers. The ronsofidated entity maintalng an acthee presence in domestic and
intemational capital markets to enable this to happen;

L Monitoring the concentration and profile of debt maturities; and

L] Maintalning backup credit facilties.

i} Flnanciag orrengements

The consadidated entity utilises variaus financing arrangements such as commercial paper, medium term notes,
bilateral bank loans and securitisation to meet liquidity reguirements, It has access to a wide array of credit
facilities to manage liquidity risk [refer to Note 13].

(1) AMarurity of financial Nabilities

The tables below analyses the consolidated entity’s linancial Rabilities into medevant maturity grougings based
on thelr remalning contractual maturity as at the reporting period for all:

. non-derivative financial Rabilities; and
. net and gross settled derivative financial instruments for which the contractual maturities are
eszential for an understanding of the timing af the cash flaws.

The amguntiin the tables are the contractual undscounted cash flows. Forinterest rate swaps, the cath flows
hawe been estimated using forward interest rates applicaie at the end of the reporting period.
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)
20. Finanelal risk management {continued)

(€] Uquidity risk (continued]

7019 <1 13 EBT] is
Consolidated Month Mariths Mgnths Years Total
£'000 £'000 £7000 5000 5000
Norn-derivatives
Banks & ather fnanal institutions 247,370 299,349 | 1938441 | 2741355 5326315
Bonds & commendial paper BO6,067 | 2164180 ) 3,052,238 7672664 | 13,695,148
Othser linbilities FELE T 45,524 3308 aF 24y A443,261
Eontract labilities - 11,547 345432 34,641 BO.B30
Tatal non-dervatives 1,309,604 | 2500804 | 5.059.040 | 10,495.907 | 19,445,555
Derivatines
Forwand foreign schangs contracts
- Bought eutrenty (577.821] (1,242,536) (273,230) =| [2.093587)
- Sald currency 582,103 1,234,355 267,974 -] 2084432
InEEnest rate svaps 1ETE 43 (15,255) (35, T0E) (0,042
Cross currendy swaps
Pay leg 107499 15863 | 1,987,830 | 3358356 | 5460538
- Receive beg [107.3%5] [11,702)| (065 643)} [3423933)( {5608639)
Total derivatives 5,304 3,977} 198.3409| [100285]] (197,298)
Tatal 1,396,108 | 2496527 | 4960700 | 10,394,622 | 19,248,257
2018 «l 13 312 1.5
Contolidated Manth Months Manths Years Total
5000 5000 5'000 5'000 5'000
Mon-derivatives
Barks & other fimancial institutions 168211 402,776 1848700 | 1.B6BA2E | 5,283,115
Bonds & commercial paper B45,050 | 1824048 | 4,112,752 | %5.113.847 | 11898697
Othier labilities 196022 31449 62,580 80,610 470,671
Total nan-derivatives. 1,313,783 1.258.273 BAOI4, 042 | &062.885 | 17658423
D rivatives
Forweard foreign exchange contracts
- Bought currency [163,131) [SE2.945) {604,573} =1 i1,330,753)
- Sold currency 150177 547395 554,481 «| 1,288,633
Irtereal rate swaps 1,742 {1,685} 11,829)] 16,609 6,037
Crods turrenty Swlipa
- Pary leg 3T4.586 440521 | 2.621.784 | 1632963 | 5070254
= Receive bng (397.700| tﬂ'Sl.B?i!l [2,751,754]] {1.643.158|| |5.244485)
Total derivatives [31,726) fazagn)]  [151,791) 5414 {210, 254]
Total 1281557 | 1235082 | 5872251 | 8065295 | 17,448,189
5
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Operating assets and liabilities

This section covers the operating assets and llabilities of the corsodidated entity Including cash and cash
equivalents, prepayments, acoounts peyable and accrued expenses payable,

21. Cash and cash equivalents

Consolidated Consolidated
2019 1018
$'oo0 $'000
Cash in bank 14,603 38,624
Depaosits at call 1,382,000 1,244,000
1,416,603

At the end of financial year, the company held $186.5 million (2018 51806 million) in cash and deposits at call
representing cash collections on securitised sssets transferred 1o special purpose entities.

Recognition and messuremesnt

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in bank, deposis held at call with financial Instiutions, other shart-
tesm, highly liquld investments with eriginal maturities of three months or less that are readiy convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafis.
Caih in Baak snd depoits at eall earn interest 8t prevailing market rates. Interest is recognized in the incoma
statement using the effective interest rate method,
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Operating assets and liabilities [continued)

22. Cash flow information

{a} Reconciliation of profit for the year to net cash fram operating activities

Conolidated Consalidated

e 2018

5'000 4000
Profit attributable to owners of the parent 143959 148,059
Share of profit af adtociates (B,4549) |7.934]
Deprecistion and smortisation ond weite-off 16,244 1E 980
Amortisstion - uglrant receipls 1,980 518
Amartisation - prepaid cxponses 23,821 I1L4ATO
Net gain on sale of mon-current assets [15.245) {12,494
Met loss on transiation of forcign currency transactions &6, 1/2 1HET45
Changes in fair walue af finsncial instruments. {307.577] {33,511)
Movements in aperoting adsels end imbifiies:
Detresse in provizion for imaairment of receivable [3,698) [11.310)
Inereassidecrease) in prowesion for imspalrment an reskdual value 16462 [10La15)
Inereasn in mans and reccbvables {1,545, 662 ) |1.640,557)
Ingrense in assets umder net oporating leaxse {net al securmilated
depreciation] [162.074) [55.571]
Becrease in deferred tan aiaet 16,248 1,735
Increase in deferred tax habiliy 5,621 &
Increase |neurrent and contract alsifies 1,017 70,933
Inscrease im current pssets [19,627) [2.098)
[Decreaselfincraases in ncome fax payable {17, 598] 53.310
Increasef{decrease) in derivative financial mstruments at fair valee
through profit o foss 71,257 laE.'!ED!
met cash outflaw from operating activities 1,045,144} (1,306,325)

{b] Reconcilistion of llabilitizs arising from financing activities

Consolidated Cansolidated
018 Cash flows Non-gash changes 2019
.:zh; Amaorthation
5'000 5'000 $004 £o00 5'000
Borrowl ngs 16,529,778 1,247,125 361.954 52,190 18,191,045
53
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Operating assets and liabilities (continued)
22. Cash flow information [continued)

(b) Reconcdiliation of liabilities arising from financing activities {continued)

Consolidated Comsolidated
2017 Cash flows Nan-cash changes 2018
Fareign
o Amortisation
$7000 5'000 5000 $000 5'000
Barrowings 15,033,273 1,331,029 116,624 43450 16,529,776
23. Other azsets

Consalidated Consolidated

2019 2018

$'000 $'000
Prapayments 20,130 18,432
Dther debtors 35,088 17,378
Accrued interest receivable on cash and cash equivalents 1454 1304
56,732 37,114
(Oaher assets ewpected to be recovered within 12 months 56,045 36,586
Other assets sxpected to be recovered after more tham 12 months GET 528
GE,7312 37,114

24, Other liabdlities and contract liabilitles

Consolidated Consolidated

2019 1018
{a} Other Rabilities 5'000 $'000
Unearmed warranty ravenue - 1,441
Employee entithements 12,000 10,464
Acorund interest payable 60,089 51838
Amounts payable to related entities 182 881 187,950
Accounts payable 107,312 74,553
foorued expenses (indwding related parties) 64,224 130,339
Other 16,755 14,020
443,261 470,671
Cther fabilities expected to be settled within 12 months 396,014 350,061
Other Habilities expected to be settled in more than 12 months 47,247 BOE10
443261 470,671
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Operating assets and liabilities (continued)

24, Other liabilities and contract liabilities (continued)

{b) Contract liabilities

The consolidated entity has recognised the following revenue-related contract lisbilities.

Corsolidated Consolidated

2019 2018
£'000 5'ono
Contract lab ltles 80,830

The following table shows how much of the revenye rocognised in the current reporting period relates 1o
carried-forward contract iabilities. Note the amounts presanted below ore gross, while the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income are presented net of related costs as the
conspidated entity is acting a5 an agent.

Revenue recogrised in relation to contract liabilities Consoldated
019
5'000

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract fiahitity balance

at the beginning of the period 58,089

As permitted under AASE 15, the transaction peice allocated to [partially) unsatisfied performance obligations
s of 31 March 2019 ks not disclosed.
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Operating assets and liabilities (continued)
24, Other liabilities and contract liabilities |continued)

019 2018

Mumber of emplovess a1 the end af the reporting poriod ToOR 717
Emplayer entitlements

{a} Short-term obligations

Usbsilities for wages end salaries, mcluding annual keave expecied to be settled within 12 months of the end of
each reporiing peried are recognised In other payables in respect of employees’ services up to the reporting
date and are measured at the amounts expected o be pald when the lability s settled. Liabilities for non-
aotumulating sick leave are recognised when the leave is teken and rmeasured 21 rates pald or payable.

{b) Other long-term ermployee benefit obligations

Tha liabilities for long service leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the
period nwhich the ermployees rendered the related service. They are therefore recognised in the provision for
employes benefits and measured a5 the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of
services provided by employees up to the end of each reporting period. Consideration is given at expected future
wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and perlods of service. Expected future payments
are discountod uging market yie'ds at the reporting date on national government bonds with terms to maturity
and currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash flows.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance shest i the consolidated entity does nat have
an uncanditional right to defier settiement for at least twehse months after the reporting cate regardless of when
the actusl settlement i4 eapected 1o oecut,

{c) Retiremnent benefit obligation

All employees of the consolidated entity are engitled to benefits on retirement, disabilty or death according to
the consolidated entity's superannuation plan. The consolidated entity has a defined contribution plan. The
defined contribution plan receives fiked contributions fram Lhe consolidated entity and the consolidated entity's
legal and constructive obligation is limited to these contributions.

Contributions to the defined contribution fund are recognised as an expense as they become payable. Prepaid

contributions are recognised as an asset 1o the extent that cash refund, or a reduction in the future payments is
avaltable,
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This section outlines the non-operaifng assots of the consolidated entity. Included In this sectlan aee the

fedlowing informathon:

= Investment sccounted for using the equity mothod

= Property and sguipment
o Deferred tax asset

25, Investment accounted for using the equity methad

Hame of entity

Mlousrmsnl in arnging am ount
Univied

Tovota Finance New fealard Limited

Carrying amgont at 1 April
Shate af profits after incame s
Dividends necsived

Mgt exchange differsnces on transfation of

forelgn assoclate enbity
Caryfng ammount at 31 March

Cowntry ol Corsolidat ed
Imcorporation
2019 2018
£'000 $'000
Nesw Tialand
67331 G4, 433
BA53 TE34
. (GEST
1,535 1,843
17325 57,331

Thae principal activitis of Tovota Finamoe New Deal and Limited duri ng the period wene:

-tz finance moter velicle segquisitiipns bn the farm of leasing, tevm purchase, consumes and

cammiigial loans;

=1 proed gl lba klenent facil e and commercial laamd to Toyota dealers;
= thee marketing of wehicle and Fnance related insusance produsts]
= the prowision of retall Rrance and related praduct for pleasure boars;

the provislon ol unietwi el o ohal loarsdnd
- o provide for car ha FIRE services,

Dwnership interest

2019 018
x ]
4545 a5 A5

Imvestments in aisoci abes are 3ecounted for i the cansolidated finamcial yiatements using the egeity method of

accourting and ade cafrled &t eosl,

(b} Share of stsodates’ profits
Profit hefore incomeLas
Incosne thx Expenie
Profit alter incoene tas

Corsalidated  Concolldsted

18 018

5000 5000
18845 11,094
(3,386] 3160
3459 104

af
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Non-operating assets [continued)
25, Investment accounted for using the equity method [continued)

it} Summarked linancial infosmatian of assodates

Conzolidated entity's share of:
Assats Liabdfties Reverues Profit
S'o0n S'000 57000 000
Consaldsted 3019
Toyota Finance New Zealand Limited ST5A44T 497516 HLAdE BASH
Consolidsed 018
Toyota Finance New Zealand Limiled 606553 538,615 G02S Ta34
Conuplidated
2019 2018
5000 5000
{d) Share of ! eapenditure commi 5
g 3.8 cenimil tmerl 5GEG 20T
Principles of consolidation

Assoclates are all ontities over which the consolidated entity has significant influence but not control, generally
sccompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of tho woting rights. investments in associates are
accounied for in the consolidsted financial staternents using the equity method of accounting, after Entially
being recognised at cost,

The consolidated entity's share of its associates’ post-acguishtion profits or losses is recognised In profit or loss,
and lts share of post-acquisition movements in ressrves (5 recognised in other compreheriive income, The
rumaulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. vidends
recesvable from assaciates are recognited in the consolidated financial statements as a reduction against the
camying amount of the investment.

‘When the consolidated entlty’s share of losses In an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associare,
Including any ather unsecured long-term receivables, the consolidated entity does not recognise further losses,
uriless it has incufred obigations or made payments on behall of its assaciate.

Unrealised gainy on iransactions between the conselidated entity and ity sssociates are elimingtled to the extent
of the consalidated entity's interest in associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the ssset transferred. Accounting poficies of assoclates have been
changed where necessary 1o enuure consistency with the policies adopted by the consolidated entity,

Fareign currency transiohion

{a] Functional and presentathon currency

ltems inciuded in the finamelsl staternents of each of the condolidated entities are measured using the eurrenty
of the primary economic environment 'n which the entity operates (the functional currency']. The censolidated
finarcial statements are presented in Australian dallars, whichk is the campany’s functional and presentation

CFTency,

On consolidation, the exchange differences arising from the transistion of the net investment in the foreign
entity from functional to presentation currency is recognised in other comprehensive incom,
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Non-operating assets (continued)

25, Investment accounted for using the equity method |(cantinued)

Foreign currency trandlation (continued)

{b] Transactions and balances

Foreign currancy transactions are trandinted into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Forelgn exchange galns and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the iransiaion at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and llabfiities denominated

in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

26. Property, plant and equipment

Accumulated
Cost dopreciation Carrying value
Consolidated 2019 5'000 5’000 5'000
Leasehald improvernents 10417 BA58 2,059
Plant and eguipment 28219 23.6594% #4520
Matar vehicles 1479 1,012 BAGT
46,115 33,065 13,045
Accumulated
Ciost depredation Carrying value
Consolidated 2018 $'000 5000 5000
Leasehold improvernents 8407 7.915 482
Plant and eguipment 24,003 21,861 2,142
BAotor vehicle 6,969 1.140 5,829
39,379 30,926 8,453
Leasohold Flank and
Improvernents equipment Matar vehicley Totals
Consalidated 2019 $'000 §'000 $'000 4000
Carrying value at 1 Ageil 487 2143 5429 B.45%
ideitions &80 4116 E8G0 13.085
Dispodanls . - (a.441) a.441)
Depreciation 4321 {LAR) i1, TR11 {40511
Carrying value at 31 March 2059 4520 BAET 13045
Leasehald Plart and
i #niE iy 3 Mator vehides Totald
Comsclidated 2018 sooa S'000 57000 5000
Carry' ng walue at 1 Agril Hal 2,050 55911 ERE
Al it et 3 1271 b.A81 1,755
Disposals . - |4,901) [4,502)
Depreciation {389 (1179) [1,664) [3,232]
Carrying value at 31 March 402 2142 5829 8453
58
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Non-operating assets {continued)
26. Property, plant and equipment [continued)

Ga'ns and losses on duposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying emount. These are Inchuded
In profit or loss.

Recognibion and measurement
Property and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Historical cast inclides
expenditure that ks directly attributable to the acguisition of the hems.

Subseguent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as 2 separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow 1o the consolidated
entity and the eost of the item can be measured reliably, All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit
or (55 during the financial period in which they ane incurred,

Depreciateen of property and equipement 5 calculated using the straight line method to allocate their cost, net
al their residual values, over ther edimated wieful lves, o8 follows:

Asset class Method Estimated useful life

Mant and equigment Stralght line 3-5 years

Wotor vehicles Straight line 1-3 years

Leasehald impravements Straight line Unexpired portion of lease or useful

life of asset whichever is shorter
The asset's residual values and wseful lives are reviewed, and adjusted f appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Anasset’s carrying amount |3 weitten dows immediately to ity recoveratde amount If the asset’s carmying amount
Is greator than its estimated recoverable amount,
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Mon-operating assets (continued)
27. Intanglble assets

Recognition amd measurament

Software consats of capitalised IT development costs being internally genernted intangible assets. These consist
ol system soltware purchased and cusiomised to the needs of the entity 03 well s internally developed software
prajects,

Capitalised software s recognised when it is probable that the project (i) will be completed eansidering its
commercial and technical Feasibility, [i[] will contrbute 1o future period fnancial benefits through revenue
generation andfor cost reductions and [iil] its costs can be measured reliably. The expenditure capizalised
comprisos all directly attributable costs, including costs of materials, services and direct [abour, Capitalised
camputer software development Is amortised from the paint at which the asset is ready for ute on a straight
line basis aver its wetul life, which varies from 3 ta 10 years.

Impairment af essets

Irtangible assets are tested lor impalrment whenever events or changes in crcumstances Indicate that the
carmying amount may nol be necoverable. An impalrment loss i recogrised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount excesds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount Is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to resell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing Impairment, assets ars grouped at the lowest
Ieweks for which there are separately identifisble cash inllows which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from ather asset groups (cash generating unlis],

Software Cost Amortisation Carrying value
000 $'o0a $000
Consolidated 2019 173,387 141 024 10,133
Contalidated 2018 154087 138,831 15,256
Consolidated Consalidated
019 2018
$000 5000
Carmying value a1 | &peil 15256 33,578
Addibiens 17270 TA19
Amariisation expense |12, 193} 112,363
Write-afi . [3,385)
Carrying value a1 31 March 30,333 15,256
&1
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Non-operating assets (continued)
28. Deferred tax assets

Risfer 1o Nate 6 licomie tax expense for further information on income Lax,

Coniolidaed Consolidated
w1g 018
5000 £'000
Deferred tax asiet balances compriie temporary dilferences
attributable to:
Amounis recogrdsed |n the balance sheet
Provislon for Impairment of loans and adwvances 48, 164 50,401
Financial insbrementy 6125 10310
Accrued expeni ey 32301 30456
Sundry items 5819 4,471
Total amount recognised in the balance sheat 93,400 96,218
Daferred tax liability balances comprise tomporary diflere noes
attributable ta:
Amounis recogrised in the balance sheet
Assets financed under lease J1B3E 14,066
Sundry | Eemg '.".1.& L824
Total amount recognised in the balanoo sheet 39,031 19,990
Met deferred tas (llablities)/assets s522) 16,248
Gross deferred tan assots opening balance 96,238 85833
Maovemant |n temparary diflefences durlng the year
Prowision for Impairment of loans and advances (1,237 (B, 57E]
Financial Instrumants. (4,785) 11,234
Ascrubd expen e 1,845 4,045
Sundry items 1,348 T03
Gross deferred tax assels dosing balance 93,409 96,238
Gross deferred taw |abllities opening balance 79,840 68,859
Maovement |n iemporary dilferences during the year
Assety financed under leass 171771 qE1Y
Sundry itema 1,269 1306
Gross deferred tax liabilities dosing balanoe 99,031 79,990
Mot delerred tas [lisbdinies)/assats {5.622) 16248
Oefpreed tax liahilities expected 1o be settled within 12 manihs 131.438) (13,798}
Defprred tax SLiet expected to be settled beyond 12 monthd 15817 T804 &
I5622) 16248

62

180/288



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

Unrecognlsed items

This secthon provides infarmation about (tems that are not recognised in the financial statements as they do not
sately thie recognition criteria but are relevant for the understanding of the financial performance of the
consalidated entity.

29, Contingent liabilities

[a} The company, as a member of the Toyota Motor Corparation Australia Limited GST Group [GST Group), is
|ointly and severally Hable for 100% of the goods and services tax {G5T) payable by the GST Group. The G5T
Group had a net G5T payable as at 31 March 2019 of 350.4 millkon {2018: 559.4 millian).

The company, in assodation with other Australian incorporated entities with a common owner, implemented
the income tax consolidation legislation from 1 April 3003 with Toyota Motor Corparation Australin Limited a
the Head Entity. Under the income tax consolidation legislation, income tax consolldation entities are jointly and
severally liable for the income tax liability of the consolidated income tax group unless an income tax sharing
agreement has been entered into by mamber entities. At the date of signing this financial report an income tax
sharing agreement has been executed.

(i} The range of Toyola Extra Care warranly contracts, offered by the company sknce August 2003, provide an
oxtended warranty to the customer in exchange for an upfront premium payment. The risk of daims has been
fully insured with third party insurers. The directors consider the insurance of risk is sufficient to maet any claims
which may eventuate.

{e} A fully malntained operating lease is offered under the company's current portfalio of preducts. Fully
maintained operating leases reguire the company pay for agreed services, Monthly rental includes a pre-
determined charge lor such services, The aclual cost of such services |s expensed periodically during the berm of
the leases and recognised in the income statement by measuring the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the company’s performance obligation.

(d) A regulatory body i currently conducting a car finance industry review. The company has been sefected for
the review. At the istuance of this report, this review remains ongoing. The financial impact (if any) is not
currently determinable and no provision has been made,

30. Commitments

Consolidated Consalidated

20159 2018
(8} Lease commitments £'000 £'oo0
Operating leases
Aggregate amount contracted but not provided for in the
accounts are as follows:
« Pramises 47,042 13,831
Due within ane year 3,223 4,328
Due after ane year but no later than five years 22,735 5,166
Due after five years 11,084 4,337

47,042 13,831

The company leases various offices under non-cancellable operating leases. The leascs have varying terms,
escalation clauses and renewal rights, On renewal, the terms of the leases are rensgotiated.

63
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Unrecognised items (continued)

30. Commitments (continued)

Consalidated Consolidated

019 18
[b) Capital commitments 5'000 5'D00
Expenditures contracted for at the end of each reporting period
but not recognised as Habilities is as follows:
Intangible assets 710 13407

31. Subsequent events
The directors are not aware of any other matter or circumstance not otherwise dealt with in Uhe regort or

financlal statements that has significantly or may significantly affect the operations of the consolidated entity,
the resulis of those operations, or the state of affairs of the consobidated entity in subsequent financial years
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Other disclosure mattars

This section covers ather nformation that s not directly related to specific line Rems in the finoncial statements,
Inchuding information about subsiciaries, releted party transections, patent entity information and other
statutory dsclosures.

32, Subsidiaries

The consalidated financal statements in¢orporate the assets, fabilities, and results of the fellowing subsidiaries
in accordance with the accounting policy described in Mote 2{bl:

Owneership nterest
Kama of entity Country of Class ol 2019 18
Incorporation shares k. %
faistralian Mliance aomotive Finance Pry
L tind ® Austral ia Dedinary 1 Lo

*imvestren value of 57 has been rounded to il Tho subsidary, previoushy kenown ag TRA [Whalesale] Pry. Limied, was
remamed ta Australian Alllance Automotive Finanoe Puy Limited duisg the vear, This subsldiary has been granted rellef from
the recesslty to prepare Ninencial statements in accordance with ASIC Irstrumemt 2016/785 lssued by the Auitraian
Securities and Imvedtmiest Commisslon, For further infoemation, refer to Note 36. The proportion of the ownership intereat
s equal 10 the proportion of vating pawer heid.

Units pwned
Hama of trust 019 018
k] ]
Southern Crass Toyota 2000-1 Traae*® 100 100
King Koala TRA 20131 Trust®® 0 100

** | pestment value of 510 has been rounded 19 el
33. Related party transaction

This note shows the extent of related party transactions that are undertaken by the consolidated entity and the
Irmpact they had on the finandal performance and position of the entity.

{a) Entities in the wholly owned group

The ultimate Austrafian parent entity Is Toyota Finance Australla Limited, @ wholly owned subsidiary of Toyota
Financial Services Corporation, which is .8 whally swned subisidiary of the ultimate parent entity, Toyola Notor
Corporation Incorporated |n Japan,

{b) Subsidiaries

Interests In subsidiaries are set out in Nete 32,

[c] Assoclates

Imvestments in associates are set out in Note 25.

65
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Other disclosure matters |continued)

33. Related party transaction (continued)
{d] Key management persenme!

fi] Key manogement persannel compensation

Consolidated Consolid
2019 2018
5 ]
Shart-term el oy Benefits 7,402 000 1,575,000

fil) Equity fnstrument disclosunes relating fo key monagement persommel

Options over Issued ordinary shares of the ultimate parent entity, being Toyota Motor Corparation, Japan,
grantec during o since the end of the financial year vo any directors or the five mos: highly remunerated officers
of the company and consolidated entity 25 part of thelr remuneration are enumerated below. Theie options
were part of Toyota Motor Corporation Global Incentive Plan of 1 August 2008. An optlon has 2 right to acguire
100 carmman shafes.

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Unexerclsed optiens  Unexercised options
Directors
1. R. Chandler, Managing Director o Fiil
Shares under option

lssued ordinany shares of the ultimate parent entity, being Toyota Motor Corporation, Japan under option at the
date of this report are a5 follows:

Issun
Dirte price Balance at Exercised Granted Balance at
options Date Expiry date of startofthe duringthe duringthe  end of the
granted exercisable shares period perod period period
2Aug 2010 1Augd012 310l 2018 () 2,000 1000 -

[A] Tha emerclse price of options s based on the price equal 1o 1035 tmes the dosing price of Topia Motor Corpormiion common shares
on the Tokyo Stock bachange 25 ot the date the optans were pranted

fit}] logns te key management personnel

Mo loans to key management personnel were recognised as at 31 March 2015 and 2018,
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Other disclosure matters [continued)
33, Related party transaction [continued)
{e} Transactions and balances with relsted pariies

Transactions and balances with related partics ore 16t aut below. Thase sre incleded In the consolidated ontity's
consolidated statement of comperehensive income and consalidated statement of financial position for the

piriad.
Conrsolidated Contnfidated
019 2048
5000 5000
Net financing fncame
Affiliate Finance income 20,254 24,466
Interest gvpense on loans from affiliated entity - {713}
Credit suppart fees pald to parent entity [15,3:65) {12,917}
Debt issuance loes paid 1o affiliated entity AL (817
Cebt issuance lees paid 1o parent entity 225 {187)
Seryice fee paid Lo alliliaged entity [351) [&48)
Expenies
Marketing sxpenses padd to affiliated entiny B4F 1,102
Sexurity shared senvioe fee B4 E1D
Consulting expenses. paid to parent entity plin) 190
AEFELE
[mars and recehables
Delerred hnarce Income rom affillates® 426,916) [38,586)
Cher assels
Accounts recefvable from afliiges® 4,886 3,244
Aczounts receivable from paredl eality® - 0
Ligbiries
Interest bearing loans payable to affillates * -
Horvinterest bearing loans. payable to affiliates 15,454 35,454
Actounts payable to afiliates® 139,405 145,637
#urrrued interest payabie to affifistes - -
Aczounts poyabl to paronk enatity® 80212 6,855
Astrued expenses payahle to affliates = a8y

No bad debts expense and allowance for doubtful depts were recognised in relation to any receivable due
from related parties as at 11 March 2019 and 31 Mareh 2018,

* Non-interest bearing

g7
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Other disclosure matters (continued)
34. Parent entity information

TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALLA LINITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2019

Assets
Cash and cash eguivalents
Loans and recelvalles
Motos vehicles under operating lease
Desiwatiie financidl initruments
Investments In assoclates
Intangible assots
Property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets
Cther asets

Total Assets

Liabilities
Duse bo banks and ather financial Institutions
Bonds and commercial paper
Related party liabilitios
Derivative financial instruments
Deferred tam liabdities
Other habilities
Contract liabilities
Total Liabilities
MNet Assels

Equity
Contributed eguity
Aeerdes
Retained sxrnings
Tatal Eguity
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Parent Parent

2019 2018

$000 $'000
1416603 1,282 624
17,076,012 15,509,768
1414487 1,253 579
343,139 360648
4,784 4,784
10,333 15 256
13046 8453
. 16,248
B0E.E52 B445,796
11,206,756 19,310,656
183465 1,037,157
13,106,166 11,414,000
4,102,375 3,891,300
143,422 135,265
5622 -
443,261 470,671
80,830 -
19,716,301 17,948,394
1,490,455 1,362,262
120,000 120,000
1,370,455 1,243,262
1,480,455 1,352,262

As at 21 March 2009, current assets snd current [abilities amounted 1o 58,947 million and 58,998 milion
respectively (2018: 58,147 milllgn and 58,766 milllan respectively]
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Other disclosure matters |continued)
34. Parent entity Information (continued]
TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Farent Porent
1018 0E
$'000 $o00
Interest revenue TE9.a1y 719 484
Rental ineome on mator vehices under aperating lease A58.441 343, Thk
fiee Income 39491 35517
Finanging and simdar revenus 1,197 385 1,092,767
Interest expinse and similar charges 612 EE7] [B17 54T}
Deprociaticn expends on mator vehice urder operating loase (F00,53E] (280,533}
Financing expense ard similar charges (=03, 383) [R9E D7)
Net financing revenue 194003 204,697
Onker revenue 195 484 200,171
Met operating income A0S AlL A A58
Credit Fmpaitmend fagses [45 o0&} [23,658])
Son-credit impalrment Ioases |16 AEF) L Lieh B
Empleyes bonofits cxpene REERLET {111,018
Deprecistion, smortisation and wiite-alf [15,244) 18,9300
T and communication evperye {19 a80) [17. 345
Sales and marketing expense {11,439) [11,354)
Deoupancy expenss [EECT] 17.227)
Other expentes 34 833 [ 6. 190]
Profit before Intome tax 212,913 201,206
ncome fax experc 50.567] [61.36E|
Prodit after income tan 153,346 139,840

(8] Guarantees sntered into by the parent entity
The company has no financial guarantee in relation to securitisation of laans and receivables.

{b) Contingent [labilities of the parant entity
Refer 1o Note 29 — Contingent liabilities

{c] Contractual commitments by the parent entity
Refer to Note 30 - Cammitments
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Other disclosure matters (continued)
35. Auditor's remuneration

[During the year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditor of the parent entity,
Tts related practices and non-retated audit firms:

Consolidated Consolidated

019 1018
5 4

PricewaterhouseCoopers - Auitralian firm
Audit or review of the financial reports 579,732 527,276
Other audit-redated work 264,635 487083
Other assurance services 339961 208,853
Total audit and other assurance services 1,184328 1,313,212
Taxation 33828 44,833
Total remuneration 1,218,156 1,356,044
Related practices of PricawaterhousoCoopers-Australian firm
[Including overseas Pricewaterhouse Coopers firms)
Other assurance services 134,218 105,764

36. Deed of cross guarantes

Toyata Fimance Ausiralia Limited and Austraian Alisnce Automotive Finance Pty Limited are parties to a deed
of cross guarartee under which each company guarantees the debts of the others. By entering inta the deed,
the wholly-owred entities have been religved from the requirement to prepare a financinl repart and a directoes”
report under ASIC Instrurnent 2016/785 issued by the Australian Securitles and Investments Commilssion.

The above companies regresent a “Closed Group”® for the purposes of the Legislative Instrument, and as there
are no other partkes (o the Deed of Cross Guarantee that are controlled by Toyeta Finance Australia Limited,
they alsa represent the “Extended Closed Graup®.

The consolidated fimancial statements cower the entities which are parties to the deed of crois fuaranteo.
Consequently, the consofidoted financial statements reflect the consolidated statement of comprehensive
impome and consplidated balance sheet, comprising the company and the contralled entities which are a party
tothe Deed, after eliminating all transactions between the parties to the Deed of Cross Guarantee, 31 31 March
Flo kB
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Dther disclosure matters (continued)
37. Changes in accounting policy

This note explains the impact of the sdoption of ARSE 9 Financial dnstruments and AASE 15 Revenwe fram
Contracts with Customers on the consolidated entity’s financial statemaents and distloses the rew accaunting
policies that fave besen apalied from 1 April 2018, where they are different to those applled In prior periods.

o) imgact an the firancial stotements

Adoption of AASE 15 did not result in any retrospective adjustmenis. However, with effect from 1 April 2028 the
consoldated entity reclassified deferred revenue to contract labilithes.

As explained in Mate 37(b) below, AASE 9 was adopted without restating comparative information anc the
adjustments asising from the new impairment requirements are only recagnised in the opening balance sheet
on 1 Agsl 2018. The materisl adjustments presented In the tabve below relate to the adoption of AASE 9 and

AnSHE 15,
31 March 2018 1 Apsil 2018
Az ariginally
Adjustmants Restated
$'000 $'060 $an0
Aasets
Cash and cash sgatvalents 1,282 h24 - 1,282 624
Loars and receivables 15,5008, 168 ansa: 15,540,550
Motae wehicles under operating lease 1,2%3 59% jea63) 1,247,117
Devivalive fimancial anstrumsmis 313,133 - 113,133
Inveitimends seounted lar wing the sgulty method 67331 . 61,311
Intangible aisots 35256 . 5,256
Prapeny, plant and eguipment LEEE] . BASY
Dleterned tax sviets 16,348 [7.238) 9012
Ouher assets 37114 . 31114
Totsl Assets 18,513,508 16884 18,530,350
Lighilities.
D bo Bamk gsd othar Nnaneial inat futions 5,115 776 . 511570
Ronds and cammpntis] puper 11,414,000 . 11,414,000
Derivative linanoa inslraments 33385 ] 135364
Oher liabalivies AT0ETL (77.185] 393486
Contract llabikies = F7.165 771B5
Todal Lisbilities 17,135,712 - 17.135.712
Fet Assets 1377784 6B 1304678
Eruity
Coniributed squity 120000 . 120,000
Reserves 5214 . L3104
Retained carrings 1,237,520 16,884 1,269,404
Talal Bguity 1,377,794 16,884 1,354,678
n
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Other disclosure matters (continued)
37. Changes in sccounting pollcy (continued)
) AASBE 9 Finenelal instruments = impact of adoption

AASB 9 Finoneial lnstruments replaces AASRE 139 Finaneial Instruments: Récognition and Measumemeant. It makes
a number of changes to the previous guidance on the cassification and measurement of financial assets and
finarcial lishilities and introduces an expected eredit lads madel for impairment af finangial ascets.

The adoption af AASE 9 Fingaeial Instruments from 1 Apail 2018 resulted in changes in accounting policies and
adjustrments 1o the amounts recognised in the financial statements. In accordance with the transitional
provisions cemparative figunes have not been restated,

{i} Classification and measurement

On 1 April 2018 {the date of initlal application of AASR 9), the consolidated entity assessed which business
models apply te financial sssets held and classified them into the appropriste ARSE O category. Financial steeqs
are held at amortised cost on the basis that the consolidated entity intends to hold them to collect contractual
cash fows solely representing payments al principal and interest.

[} impainment of financial assets
The consoldated entlty has two types of financial assets that are subject o AASD S

*  Retail and Wholesale receivelbles which are subject to the general impairment model
= Fleot receivabled whach are subject to the simplified impairment maodel

The consolidated entity was reguired to revise its impairment methodology for each of these classes of assets.
The mpact of the change in impairmert methadolegy on the consolidated entities retained carmings and
equity Is disclosed in Note 37(a).

‘While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements of AASH 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial_

The consolidated entity applicd AASE 9% simplified approach ta measuring espected credit bosses for flest
recetvables, This approach recagnises a fetime ecpected loss allowance.

To meature the expected credit lodses for the retall partiolio, under AASE 9 the group utes 8 “three-stage”
madel for impa‘rment based on the changes in credit quality since initial recognition as summarised befow:
= A financial instrument that Is not credit-impaired on initial recognition |s dassified in Stage 1 and has
its credit risk continuously monitored by the consolidated entity,
= |f a significant increase in credit risk since Initial recognition & identified, the financial instrument i
moved to Stage 2 but i« not yat deemad to be credit-impaired.
If the fimancial instrument is eredit-impaired, the financial instrument is then moved to Stage 3,
®  Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their expected credit (oss measured at an amaunt equal Lo the
portian of lfetime sxpected losses that result from default events possible within the next 12 maonths,
Instrurnents in Stage 2 and 3 have their expected oredit loss measured on a ifetime bas's

T2
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Other disclosure matters (continued)

37. Changes in accounting policy [continued)

B) AASE 9 Finonciol Instruments = impoct of adoption {oontinued)
fii) impairment of financial assets

The lass allowance as of 1 April 2018 was as follows:

12 month ECL
5'000

Retadl and Wholesale:

Gross ea rrying amount 13,512,899
Loss allowance 43 8318
Fleet:

Grods carrying amaunt -
Loss allowance -

EDINETOOOO

00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

Lifetime ECL Total

§'000 $'000
ST6,0ME 14,188 545
43,172 87,000
2,742,403 2,742,403
24,462 24462

The Boss allowances for retall and fieet at 31 Mar 2018 reconcile to the opening loss allowances on 1 April 2018

as foilows:
Retall and
Fxenion o hmpsirme s Wholesale Fleet Total
$'000 £'000 5'000
Az 3t 31 March 2018 121,713 13,869 135,582
Amounts restated through retained earnings (34,713) 10,593 [24.120)
Restated as at 1 April 2018 87,000 24,462 111,462

£ AASE 15 Controcts with customers — impoct of adaptian

On adoption of AASH 15, effective 1 April 2018, the consolidated entity considered revenue strearmds within the
seope of AASE 15 and have concluded that there was no change to the amounts or timing of revenue recognised

73
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DIRECTORS' DECLARATION
in the directors’ opinion:

{2} the financia statements and notes set out on pages & to 3 are in accordance with the Corporations Act
2001, including;

o] compheing with Accounting Stomdardy, the Corporglions Hegilptions 2001 and other mandatony
professional reporting requirements; ong

[} giving a triee and foir wew of the consodidoted eatity’s finoncial pasition os ot 31 March 201 9 and
af its performence for the yeor ended on that dote; and

{b] there are reasonalble grounds to belleve that the company will be able to pay Its debts as and when they
becorne due and payable; and

{c] at the date of this declaration, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the members of the
Extended Closed Group kdentified in note 36 will be able te meet any obligations or liabilities to which
they are, or may become, subject by virtue of the deed of cross guarantes described in note 36,

Rate 2{a} confirms that the financial statermnents also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards
s issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

This declaration i made in accordance with a resolution of the directors,

For and on behalf of the Board

1. R. Chandler
DNrecioe

S s

Dfe o

Sydney
05 June 2015

74
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2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018 11
2018 11
2018 11
2018
2018 10
2018
2018 27
10 2018 12 19
2018
11 2018 12 19
2018
12 2018 12 19
2018
13 2018 12 19
2018
14 2018 12 19
2018
15 2018 12 19
2018
16 2018 12 21
17 2018 12 21
2018
18 2018 12 21
2018
19 2018 12 21
2018
20 2019
2018
21 2019
2018
22 2019
2018
23 2019 10
24 2019 10

25 2019 10
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)
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
( )| 27,234,521 | 28,403,118 | 27,597,193 | 29,379,510 | 30,225,681
( ) 2,892,828 2,983,381 2,193,825 2,620,429 2,285,465
( ) 2,173,338 2,312,694 1,831,109 2,493,983 1,882,873
( ) 3,294,275 1,517,486 1,966,650 2,393,256 1,936,602
( )| 17,647,320 | 18,088,186 | 18,668,953 | 19,922,076 | 20,565,210
( )| 47,729,830 | 47,427,597 | 48,750,186 | 50,308,249 | 51,936,949
() 5,334.96 5,513.08 5,887.88 6,438.65 6,830.92
() 688.02 741.36 605.47 842.00 650.55
() 687.66 735.36 599.22 832.78 645.11
() 35.2 35.3 35.9 37.2 37.3
() 13.9 13.8 10.6 13.7 9.8
() 12.2 8.0 10.0 8.1 10.0
( ) 3,685,753 4,460,857 3,568,488 4,223,128 3,766,597
( ) 3,813,490 3,182,544 2,969,939 3,660,092 2,607,241
( ) 306,045 423,571 375,165 449,135 540,839
( ) 2,284,557 2,939,428 3,149,326 3,219,639 3,706,515
) 344,109 348,877 364,445 369,124 370,870
[ 1 [ 85,848] [ 86,843] [ 86,005]| [ 84,731]| [ 87,129]|
)
2019
2017 2018
( )
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)
111 112 113 114 115
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
( 11,200,414 | 11,585,822 | 11,476,343 | 12,201,443 | 12,634,439
2,125,104 | 2,284,001 | 1,801,736 | 2,238,140 | 2,323,121
( 1,600,679 | 1,810,370 | 1,520,011 | 1,859,312 | 1,896,824
( 397,049 635,401 635,401 635,401 635,401
( 3,417,007 | 3,337,007 | 3,262,907 | 3,262,007 | 3,262,907
( _ 47,100 47,100 47,100 47,100
( 10,184,271 10,859,443 11,365,784 12,040,947 12,450,274
( 15,128,623 | 16,100,200 | 16,592,167 | 17,200,436 | 17,716,993
) 3,235.44 3,417.07 3,659.40 3,972.72 4,225.55
200 210 210 220 220
, ) o) ( 100) ( 100) ( 100) ( 100)
— 52 105 158 211
, ) « 5 ( 26.0) ( 52.5) ( 79.0) (105.5)
) 535.22 581.08 506.96 628.31 657.10
) 534.95 575.64 500.65 620.85 649.89
) 67.3 67.4 68.5 70.0 70.3
) 17.8 17.2 13.8 15.9 15.5
) 15.7 10.2 11.9 10.9 9.9
) 37.4 36.1 41.4 35.0 33.5
O 70,037 72,721 73,875 74,890 74,515
[ [ o047  [10,371)]  [10.700 [ 10,005) [ 11.122]|
D) 1473 109.2 114.3 131.6 129.5
( () (130.7) (116.5) (133.7) (154.9) (147.1)
TOP1X)
) 8,741 8,637 7,156 7,782 7,502
) 5,314 5,710 4,975 5,605 6,079
)
( 28 2018 16 ) 115
114
)
( )
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@
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
( ) 1,645,393 1,880,183 1,812,554 1,978,884 2,141,906
( ) 367,586 330,190 215,447 280,769 313,306
( ) 235,090 232,719 148,687 509,930 222,308
( ) 383,235 82,594 117,191 439,270 267,214
( ) 2,091,538 2,173,667 2,291,850 2,733,310 2,893,403
( ) 22,079,002 21,379,657 22,188,626 22,636,927 23,660,621

) 1,319,596.49 | 1,372,219.52 | 1,444,732.41| 1,721,667.31 | 1,816,366.85

() 149,691.36 |  148,181.83 94,674.94 |  324,692.91 |  141,552.90
() — — — — —
() 9.4 10.1 10.2 11.9 12.1
() 12.5 11.0 6.7 20.5 8.0
) — — — — —
( ) — — — — —
( ) — — — — —
( ) — — — — —
( ) — — — — —
) 9,463 9,670 10,172 10,364 10,634
) (1,380) (1,536) (1,548) (1,450) (1,540)
)
( 28 30 16 )
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@)

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
114,146 41,846 39,854 58,411 75,532
107,950 30,975 28,947 47,297 63,027
101,148 27,192 26,160 42,983 57,665
78,525 78,525 78,525 78,525 78,525
1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500
532,181 556,311 581,408 624,560 580,459
542,196 562,541 589,136 633,111 586,472
338,861.06 | 354,225.54 | 370,206.23 | 397,682.51 |  369,601.93
_ _ . . 63,674.00
(63,674.00)
64,405.56 17,314.84 16,657.31 27,369.48 36,717.92
98.2 98.9 98.7 98.6 99.0
21.0 5.0 4.6 7.1 9.6
_ _ — — 173.4
87 86 79 73 85
(14) 17) (18) (16) (14)

(

)
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( ) 100

1982

1987
1988

1989
1990
1993
1996
1999
2000

2001

2002
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)
635,401 100
)
(
16,500 100
Plano, ( ) 100
Texas, U.S.A. 915,000 (100)
Plano, ( ) 100
Texas, U.S.A. 10,000 (100)
Markham, ( ) 100
Ontario, Canada 60,000
( )
Cologne, Germany 30.000 100
Amsterdam, ( )
( ) Netherlands 908 100
Epsom, Surrey, ( ) 100
(UK) United Kingdom 119,800
St Leonards, ( )
New South Wales, 120.000 100
Australia ’
( 86.8
Bangkok, Thailand (0'1)
15,100 )
3,100,000 100
45
)
Sandton, Gauteng, ( ) 33.3
South Africa 4,695 (33.3)
( )
3,746,104 33.3
5
( )
)
( )
10

211/288



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

(D)
2019 31
)
1,977
3,370
1,215
3,987
C ) 85
10,634 (1,540)
)
( )
)
C )
@
2019 31
) ) ) C )
85 (14) 45.1 7.5 10,598
) )
( ) )
(©)
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( 28 30 16 )

@

&)

100

35
282
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2,223

755
615 168 630
« )
1,776 133
248 40
« )
4,907 1,178
1,328 221
« )
743 67
( )
3,991 250
126
23 6,606
9,543 18 4,646 693
20 7,672
4,205 10 2,868 4,430
8,934
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1,419 1,630
2,818 321 3,133 325
2,876
171
157 576 146
219
1,049
236
1,959
8,636
10 4,803
1,600
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) (D)
1,627,806 5.5
13,470,340 5.0
1,275,603 20.2
5,346,897 7.5
21,720,648 6.4
()
) ()
177,645 8.1
1,490,781 8.6
74,354 10.0
399,125 6.7
2,141,906 8.2
(D)
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( )
2,147,433
2019 31
( ) )
4,494,000 100.0
4,494,000 100.0
2019 31
( )
)
1,948
959 | 11,442 388 | 12,789 Ga1)
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3
2019 31
( )

( ) )
(Plano 1,328 | 18,484 | 2,061 | 21,874 %éSéi
Texas, U.S.A.)

()
)
€y
(2019 2020 31 )
1,884,129
18,942
)
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(€))
)
4,680,000
4,680,000
)
1,570,500
1,570,500 — _
)
(©)
“4)
) ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
2004 15 ) 70,000 | 1,570,500 3,500 78,525 3,500 78,525
1,500,500 70,000 70,000
100,000
50,000
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)
(2019 31 )
()
) — ! — — — ! —
() —11,570,500 — — — 11,570,500 —
( ) —_ 100.00 —_ —_ — 100.00 —_
(6)
(2019 31 )
) (
) O
1,570,500 100.00
— 1,570,500 100.00
@
(2019 31 )
() ()
( _ — _
( — J— J—
( — — —
( 1,570,500 1,570,500 —
1,570,500 — —
- 1,570,500 —
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( )
(2018 31 ) (2019 31 )
389,639 571,170
, 14,721,212 , 15,729,259
1,342,045 1,497,388
570,787 276,631
650,891 566,467
164,242 176,266
17,510,333 18,464,651
¢ ) : 4,350,779 . 4,494,000
9,262 9,474
4,360,042 4,503,474
38,017 36,884
468,002 365,419
260,530 290,192
728,533 655,611
5,126,593 5,195,969
22,636,927 23,660,621
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( )
(2018 31 ) (2019 31 )
919,723 1,130,702
) 1,629,396 ) 1,739,114
2,321,393 2,289,804
3,891,614 3,871,603
30,161 32,471
1,074,034 1,223,156
9,866,324 10,286,853
6,253,109 6,655,252
, 3,046,051 , 3,052,704
637,113 686,236
10,983 17,398
14,873 15,877
75,160 52,893
10,037,291 10,480,363
19,903,616 20,767,217
78,525 78,525
159,900 159,900
2,545,223 2,653,758
2,783,648 2,892,183
560 1,184
2,667 3,217
81,877 43,981
79,770 39,579
29,432 40,799
2,733,310 2,893,403
22,636,927 23,660,621
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( )
( 2017 2018

2018 31 ) 2019 31 )
1,978,884 2,141,906
1,325,249 1,435,668
653,635 706,237
403,990 424,429
249,645 281,807
1,042 —
3,658 3,651
24,939 25,606
2,433 3,002
32,073 32,350
732 298
— 234
216 318
949 851
280,769 313,306
361 _
361 —
— 5,535
— 5,535
281,130 307,771
66,089 53,897
298,860 27,196
232,770 81,093
513,901 226,678
3,971 4,369
509,930 222,308
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( )
( 2017 2018
2018 31 ) 2019 31 )
513,901 226,678
5,637 1,745
799 207
68,653 41,592
460 2,594
74,630 40,535
439,270 267,214
434,805 262,499
4,465 4,714
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2017 2018 a1 )
( )
78,525 159,900 2,035,293 2,273,718
509,930 509,930
— — 509,930 509,930
78,525 159,900 2,545,223 2,783,648
5,077 4,065 13,908 4,766 22,898 2,291,850
509,930
5,637 1,397 67,968 75,003 6,534 68,469
5,637 1,397 67,968 75,003 6,534 441,460
560 2,667 81,877 79,770 29,432 2,733,310
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2018 2019 31 )
( )
78,525 159,900 2,545,223 2,783,648
13,773 13,773
78,525 159,900 2,531,449 2,769,875
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http://ww.auasb.gov.au/auditors__responsibilities/ar3.pdf.
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I ndependent auditor's report

To the members of Toyota Finance Australia Limited

Our opinion

In our opinion:

The accompanying financial report of Toyota Finance Australia Limited (the Company) and its controlled entities (together the

Group) isin accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(8 giving atrue and fair view of the Group's financia position asat 31 March 2018 and of its financial performance for the
year then ended

(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

What we have audited
The Group financial report comprises:
the consolidated statement of financial position asat 31 March 2018
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended
the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended
the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies
the directors' declaration.

Basisfor opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and
the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with the Code.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Group's annual report for the year ended 31 March 2018, including the Directors report, but does not include the financial
report and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility isto read the other information identified above and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, we

conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the directors for the financial report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives atrue and fair view in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives atrue and fair view and is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financia report, the directors are responsible for ng the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic aternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as awholeis free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
ahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of the financial report.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report islocated at the Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board website at: http://www.auash.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar3.pdf. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Joe Sheeran Sydney
Partner 1 June 2018
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I ndependent auditor's report

To the members of Toyota Finance Australia Limited

Our opinion

In our opinion:

The accompanying financial report of Toyota Finance Australia Limited (the Company) and its controlled entities (together the

Group) isin accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(8 giving atrue and fair view of the Group's financia position asat 31 March 2019 and of its financial performance for the
year then ended

(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

What we have audited
The Group financial report comprises:
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended
the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended
the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies
the directors' declaration.

Basisfor opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and
the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with the Code.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual
financial report for the year ended 31 March 2019, but does not include the financial report and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financia report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility isto read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we

conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the directors for the financial report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives atrue and fair view in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives atrue and fair view and is free from material
mi sstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financia report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic aternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial report as awhole is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assuranceis
ahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of the financia report.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report islocated at the Auditing and Assurance

Standards Board website at: http://www.auash.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar3.pdf. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Joe Sheeran Sydney
Partner 5 June 2019
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